
glad to consider those amendments and to 
reply to the statements and criticisms put 
forward by different delegations. 

Wishing to have enough time to give a 
fuller explanation of his delegation's point 
of view, he supported the proposal for 
adjournment made by the representative of 
Czechoslovakia. 

The CHAIRMAN drew the Committee's 
attention to the fact that the General 
Committee had marked 8 December as 
the closing date of the General Assembly 
session, even recommending night meetings 
in order that the Committees and Sub
Committees might be able to finish their 
work in time. The Second Committee should 
therefore make an effort to complete its 
work as soon as possible. 

He therefore proposed that the Committee 
should defer consideration of item 2 on its 
agenda and proceed to a study of the following 
item. 

Mr. AUGENTHALER (Czechoslovakia) sup
ported the proposal. 

The proposal to postpone the discussion was 
adopted by 10 votes to 6., with 23 abstentions. 

As Mr. LYCHOWSKI (Poland) and Mr. PANDO 
MACHADO (Cuba) were not ready to present 
their draft resolutions on the following item 
on the agenda, the CHAIRMAN declared the 
meeting closed. 

The meeting rose at 5 p.m. 

SEVENTY -THIRD MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
on Tuesday, 9 November 1948, at 3.20 p.m. 

Chairman: Mr. Hernan SANTA CRuz (Chile). 

26. Continuation of the discussion on the 
question of discrimination in inter
national trade draft resolution 
submitted hy the delegation of Po
land (AJC.2/137) 

Mr. ARUTIUNIAN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) stated that . his delegation had 
noted with satisfaction the initiative taken by 
the Polish delegation in raising the question 
of discrimination in international trade. The 
Polish resolution deserved the serious 
attention of the General Assembly because it 
aimed at eliminating one of the serious 
obstacles to the development of international 
economic co-operation. It was quite clear 
that discrimination practised by Members 
of the United Nations in their external trade 
relations hindered such co-operation. The 
Charter of the United Nations, as well as a 
number of resolutions of the General Assembly 
and of the Economic and Social Council, 
contained provisions for increasing co-oper
ation in the solution of international economic 

de prendre connaissance de ces amendements 
et de repondre aux declarations et aux criti
qm;s des diverses delegations. 

Etant donne qu'il voudrait pouvoir dis
poser d'assez de temps pour exposer en detail 
le point de vue de sa delegation, il appuie la 
proposition d'ajournement faite par le repre
sentant de la Tchecoslovaquie. 

Le PRESIDENT attire !'attention de la 
Commission sur le fait que le Bureau a fixe au 
8 decembre la cloture de la session de l'Assem
blee generale, recommandant meme des sbpl
ces de nuit pour que les commissions et le:s 
sous-commissions puissent terminer leurs tra
vaux en temps utile. La Deuxieme Commis
sion devrait done s'efforcer de mener les siens 
a bien dans le plus bref delai possible. 

Il propose, en consequence, de suspendre 
l'examen du point 2 de l'ordre du jour et 
d'aborder l'etude du point suivant. 

M. AUGENTHALER (Tchecoslovaquie) 
rallie a cette proposition. 

se 

Par 10 voix contre 6 avec 23 abstentions, la 
motion d'ajournement du debat est adoptee. 

M. LvcHOWSKI (Pologne) et M. PANDO 
MACHADO (Cuba) n'etant pas prepares a pre
senter les projets de resolutions relatifs aux 
points suivants de l'ordre du jour, le PRESI
DENT declare la seance levee. 

La seance est levee a 17 heures. 

SOIXANTE-TREIZIEME SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le mardi 9 novembre 1948, a 15 h. 20. 

President : M. Hernan SANTA CRuz (Chili). 

26. Suite de la discussion sur la question 
des mesures discriminatoires en ma
tiere de commerce international : 
projet de resolution presente par 
la delegation de la Pologne (AjC. 
2/137) 

M. ARoUTIOUNIAN (Union des Republiques 
socialistes sovietiques) declare que sa delega
tion a accueilli avec satisfaction !'initiative 
prise par la Pologne de soulever la question 
des mesures discriminatoires en matiere de 
commerce international. La resolution de la 
Pologne merite toute !'attention de l'Assem
blee generale, car elle vise a supprimer un des 
principaux obstacles au developpement de la 
cooperation internationale dans le domaine 
economique. De toute evidence, ce developpe
ment est entrave par la discrimination qui 
intervient dans les relations commerciales des 
Etats Membres de !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies. La Charte des Nations Unies et nombre 
de resolutions de l' Assemblee generale et du 
Conseil economique et social contiennent des 
dispositions tendant a augmenter la coopera-

213 



problems among whfch the development of 
trade was of great significance. 

In their well-grounded statements, the 
Polish and Czechoslovak representatives had 
shown that discrimination in international 
trade was contrary to the aims and purposes 
of the United Nations. That was unquestion
ably so. 

The representative of the United States of 
America had tried to circumvent that aspect 
of the question; he had even stated that the 
Charter did not explicitly mention trade 
discrimination. But since it called for 
international economic co-operation, could 
there be any doubt that in that connexion 
the Charter presupposed first of all a normal 
development of trade between countries? 
The USSR delegation considered that the 
development of trade between countries 
without political discrimination, on terms 
mutually advantageous to them, and without 
interference in their respective internal affairs 
was the wholesome foundation which was 
indispensable for the development of 
international ~o-operation not only in the 
economic, but in the political and cultural 
fields as well. 

The Second World War had brought about 
substantial changes in international trade. 
The instability and irregularity of the world 
market was increasing rapidly. The de
struction caused by the war had eliminated 
from the world market the two main rivals 
of Anglo-American monopolies: Germany and 
Japan, whose pre-war international trade 
represented 12 to 18 per cent of the total 
volume. The elimination of Italy from the 
world market should also be noted in that 
connexion, as well as the greatly weakened 
positions of the United Kingdom, of France 
and of such colonial Powers as the Netherlands 
and Belgium. That seriously affected the 
preferential system of the British Empire and 
increased the vulnerability of the European 
metropolitan Powers in their trade relations 
with colonies and other under-developed 
countries. 

Since Europe, particularly central and 
eastern Europe, had been the theatre of 
military operations, it was natural that trade 
among the European countries themselves 
should also have suffered as a result of the 
war. In contrast, the United States of 
America, owing precisely to the fact that the 
military conflict had occurred a great distance 
from its territory, was able not only to 
maintain its productive capacity but to 
increase it as a result of the war. 
Consequently, its share of world trade had 
also increased. The share of the United 
States in world exports had increased from 
18.5 per cent in 1988 to 82.6 per cent in 1947. 

One of the characteristic features of the 
post-war external trade relations of the 

tion intemationale dans la recherche des 
solutions des problemes economiques inter
nationaux ; or le probleme du developpement 
du commerce est, entre tous, un des plus 
importants. 

Les representants de Ia Pologne et de Ia 
Tchecoslovaquie, dans leurs exposes solide
ment fondes, ont montre qu'en matiere de 
commerce international la discrimination etait 
contraire aux fins et aux objectifs de l'Organi
sation des Nations Unies. Cela est indiscu
table. 

Le representant des Etats-Unis d'Amerique 
a essaye d'ecarter cet aspect de la question; il 
est alle jusqu'a dire que la Charte ne fait pas 
expressement mention de la discrimination en 
matiere commerciale. Mais la Charte invite 
les nations a cooperer dans le domaine econo
mique, et n'est-il pas evident qu'une telle 
cooperation presuppose au premier chef que 
des relations commerciales normales se deve
loppent entre les pays ? Selon la delegation de 
l'URSS, l'etablissement de telles relations 
dans des conditions avantageuses pour tous 
les interesses, sans discrimination de caractere 
politique, sans ingerence dans les affaires 
interieures des Etats, constitue la base saine 
et indispensable du developpement de Ia 
cooperation internationale, non seulement 
dans le domaine economique, mais aussi bien 
dans les domaines politiques et culturels. 

Les echanges internationaux se sont trouves 
profondement modifies du fait de la deuxieme 
guerre mondiale. L'instabilite et l'irregularite 
du marche mondial s'accentuent rapidement. 
Les destructions causees par la guerre ont 
ecarte de ce marche les deux principaux rivaux 
des monopoles anglo-americains, l'Allemagne 
et le Japon, dont le commerce representait, 
avant la guerre, 12 a 18 pour )00 du volume 
total des echanges internationaux. n faut aussi 
tenir compte de ce que l'Italie a disparu du 
marche mondial, et que les positions du 
Royaume-Uni, de la France et des puissances 
coloniales comme les Pays-Bas et la Belgique 
se sont notablement affaiblies. La situation 
affecte serieusement le systeme preferentiel 
en vigueur dans !'empire britannique et rend 
les puissances metropolitaines d'Europe bien 
plus vulnerables, dans leurs relations commer
ciales avec les colonies et les pays insuffisam
ment developpes. 

Comme l'Europe, l'Europe centrale et orien
tale, en particulier, a servi de theatre d'opera
tions militaires, il est normal que les relations 
commerciales entre les pays europeens aient 
ete gravemen-t;_ touchees par la guerre. Au 
contraire, les Etats-Unis d'Amerique, precise
ment parce que le conflit s'est deroule loin de 
leur territoire, ont pu non seulement main
tenir leur capacite de production, mais l'ac
croitre du fait meme de la guerre. Aussi la 
place que leur commerce occupe dans !'en
semble des echanges mondiaux est-elle beau
coup plus large que jadis. Le commerce 
des Etats-Unis d'Amerique, qui en 1988 repre
sentait 18,5 pour 100 du commerce mondial, 
en representait 82,6 pour 100 en 1947. 

Un des traits qui caracterisent le commerce 
exterieur des Etats-Unis d'Amerique depuis la 

214 



United States was the sharp lag of imports 
in relation to exports. That fact was an 
expression of the expansionist character of 
the external trade policy of the United States. 
The ruling circles in the United States followed 
a policy aimed at further conquest and 
designed to strengthen their position in the 
world market. Obviously, everything was 
done to dissimulate such a policy under high 
sounding declarations on co-operation and 
even "assistance". But in practice the United 
States carried on an expansionist policy in 
international trade relations. To that end 
she did not stop short of violating generally 
accepted norms of international law in the 
field of trade relations, nor of violating 
obligations arising out of treaties. The United 
States attempted to utilize in her own interest 
those international economic organizations in 
which she played a dominating role. 

Trade relations between the United States 
and the USSR provided an example. Those 
trade relations were, or at least should have 
been, governed by the provisions of the trade 
agreement concluded on 4 August 1937. 
That agreement provided that in their 
trade relations the two countries would 
observe the most favoured nation principle 
unconditionally and without reservation. 

In spite of the fact that the agreement of 
4 August 1937 was legally still in force at the 
present time, however, the United States was 
applying to its exports to the USSR different 
and more disadvantageous regulations and 
formalities than those it applied to third 
parties. 

The United States representative had 
admitted in his speech of 4 November that the 
United States was applying a special system of 
control, not used with respect to other 
countries, to its export trade with the USSR 
and with East European countries. That 
constituted a direct violation by the United 
States of the obligations it had assumed when 
signing the agreement. The violation was so 
obvious that it was even mentioned in United 
States newspapers. Mr. Arutiunian referred 
to the New York Post of 12 August 1948 in 
which it was stated that it seemed 
unquestionable that the United States was 
violating its trade agreement with the USSR 
in the most blatant and unpardonable manner. 

The United States and United Kingdom 
representatives had instituted the procedure 
of blaming the USSR for breaking agreements, 
but the example of the trade agreement 
between the USSR and the United States 
proved concretely who was guilty of violating 
international agreements. Behind discussions 
on the development of international trade and 
of international economic co-operation, the 
United States of America was violating present 
trade agreements and its own obligations 
arising therefrom, and was using discrim-

guerre est que les exportations l'emportent 
tres nettement sur les importations. C'est la 
un fait qui traduit bien les tendances expan
sionnistes de la politique commerciale ameri
caine. Les cercles dirigeants de ce pays cher
chent a etendre leurs conquetes et a renforcer 
leurs positions sur le marche mondial. On 
s'efforce, evidemment, de dissimuler une telle 
politique en faisant sonner bien haut les mots 
de cooperation et meme « d'assistance )). En 
fait, les Etats-Unis d'Amerique, dans leurs 
relations commerciales avec l'etranger, pour
suivent une politique expansionniste. Pour 
arriver a leurs fins, ils n'hesitent pas a violer 
les regles universellement acceptees du droit 
international en matiere de commerce, ni a 
violer les obligations que Jeur imposent les 
traites coinmerciaux. Les Etats-Unis d'Ame
rique essaient d'utiliser a leurs fins egoi:stes 
les organisations economiques internationales 
dans lesquelles ils jouent un role preponderant. 

M. Aroutiounian prend comme exem:ele le 
cas des relations commerciales entre les Etats
Unis d'Amerique et l'Union des Republiques 
socialistes sovietiques. Ces relations sont, ou 
plutOt devraient etre, reglees par les dispo· 
sitions de l'accord commercial conclu entre les 
deux pays le 4 aout 1937. Cet accord prevoit 
que les deux pays observeront, dans leurs 
relations commerciales, sans condition et sans 
reserve, le principe de la nation la plus favo
risee. 

Legalement, !'accord du 4 aout 1937 est 
toujours en vigueur ; en fait, cependant, les 
exportations des Etats-Unis d'Amerique a 
destination de l'Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques sont sujettes a une regie
mentation et a des formalites bien differentes 
de celles qui s'appliquent aux exportations 
destinees a d'autres pays, et bien plus defavo
rables a l'autre partie. 

Dans son discours du 4 novembre, le repre
sentant des Etats-Unis d'Amerique a reconnu 
que les exportations americaines a destination 
de l'URSS et des pays de !'Europe orientale 
n'etaient pas soumises au meme systeme de 
controle que les exportations a destination des 
autres pays. C'est la, de la part des Etats-Unis, 
une violation directe des obligations qu'ils 
ont assumees en signant l'accord. Le fait est 
si patent qu'il a ete releve meme dans Ia presse 
americaine. M. Aroutiounian se refere en 
particulier a un article du New York Post du 
12 aout 1948 ; ce journal declarait qu'il sem
blait hors de doute que les Etats-Unis d'Ame
rique violaient de la maniere Ia plus criante et 
Ia plus impardonnable l'accord commercial 
passe avec l'URSS. 

Les Etats-Unis d' Amerique et le Royaume
Uni ont institue la pratique de mettre sur le 
compte de l'URSS Ia violation des accords ; 
mais l'exemple de ]'accord commercial entre 
l'Union des Republiques socialistes sovie
tiques et les Etats-Unis d'Amerique montre 
de fa~on positive qui est responsable de violer 
les accords internationaux. Tandis qu'ils conti
nuent a discuter sur le developpement du 
commerce international et Ia cooperation 
economique internationale, les Etats-Unis 
d' Amerique violent les accords commerciaux 

215 



inatory practices in its trade relations with 
various Members of the United Nations. 
The USSR delegation believed that such 
an attitude towards international trade 
agreements did not in any way foster 
international economic co-operation between 
Member States and was contrary to the 
principles of the United Nations. That 
inadmissible attitude of the United States 
towards its obligations resulted in a 
curtailment of international trade. 

During the first quarter of 1947, the 
United States of America had exported 
47,396,000 dollars worth of goods to the 
USSR; in the first quarter of 1948 its export 
had decreased by more than halt and had 
amounted to only 20,755,000 dollars. In 
May 1948 the USSR had received from the 
United States exports amounting to only 
204,000 dollars; that amount was 33 times 
smaller than the average monthly export in 
the first quarter of 1948 and 77 times less 
than the average monthly export in the 
first quarter of 1947. That was an example 
of how disregard of the obligations arising 
from their trade agreements could affect 
trade between two Members of the United 
Nations. 

The total export of the United States to 
eight Eastern European countries including 
the USSR, amounting in the first quarter of 
1947 to 105 million dollars had apparently 
decreased to 68 million dollars during the 
first quarter of 1948, in other words by 
one-third. In May 1948 the export volume 
had amounted to only 3,600,000 dollars 
which meant that it had decreased more 
than six times with respect to the average 
monthly rate for the first quarter of 1948, and 
almost ten times with respect to the 
average monthly rate for the first quarter 
of l 947. 

In the opinion of the USSR delegation, the 
policy of curtailing trade with EastC'rn 
Enrop<'an countri<'s was a hindrance to 
peace; it obstructed the reconstruction and 
development of European and world-wide 
economy and cr<'ated new difficulties in the 
mutual rdations of Member.-; of the United 
Nations. 

The ruling circles in the United States were 
attempting to saddle the "Mar:-,halliz<'d" 
countries with the same discriminatory policies 
towards their trade with East European 
countries. 'Mr. Mc~eil, the United Kingdom 
representative, and repres<'ntativ<'s of other 
Western European nations had attempted 
to deny that assertion. They had stated 
that the United States was not exerting any 
pressure on their external trade relations. 

Naturally, a different declaration could not 
have been expected. But a news item 
reported on 12 August 1948 by the London 
Office of the United Press, had quoted 
authoritative sources as saying that United 
States and United Kingdom officials were 

existants et les obligations qui en decoulent, 
et ils usent de mesures discriminatoires dans 
leurs relations commerciales avec divers Etats 
Membres de !'Organisation des Nations Unies. 
Aux yeux de la delegation de l'URSS, un tel 
comportement a l'egard des accords commer
ciaux internationaux ne peut guere favoriser 
la cooperation economique entre les :Etats 
membres, et il est en contradiction avec les 
principes des Nations Unies. Cette attitude 
inadmissible des Etats-Unis d'Amerique au 
regard de leurs obligations a pour resultat 
une reduction des echanges internationaux. 
, Au cours du premier trimestre de 1947, les 

Etats-Unis d'Amerique ont exporte vers 
l'Union des Republiques socialistes sovieti
ques pour 47.396.000 dollars de marchandises ; 
au cours du premier trimestre de 1948, ces 
exportations ont diminue de plus de la moitie 
et ne se sont elevees qu'a 20.755.000 dollars. 
En mai 1948, le montant des exportations des 
Etats-Unis vers l'URSS ne s'est eleve qu'a 
204.000 dollars, montant 33 fois plus faible 
que la moyenne mensuelle des exportations 
pendant le premier trimestre de 1948 et 
77 fois plus faible que la moyenne mensuelle 
des exportations du premier trimestre de 
1947. C'est la un exemple de la mesure dans 
laquelle le mepris des obligations decoulant 
des accords commerciaux qu'ils ont signes 
peuvent affecter les relations commerciales 
entre deux Membres des Nations Unies. 

L'ensemble des exportations des Etats
Unis vers huit pays de !'Europe orientale, y 
compris l'URSS, s'est eleve pour le premier 
trimestre de 1947 a 105 millions de dollars; il 
est tombe a 68 millions de dollars pour le 
premier trimestre de 1948, c'est-a-dire que 
ces exportations ont diminue d'un tiers. En 
mai 1948, le montant de ces exportations 
s'est eleve a 3.600.000 dollars, c'est-a-dire a un 
chiffre six fois plus faible que la moyenne men
suelle pour le premier trimestre de 1948, et 
presque dix fois plus faible que la moyenne 
mensuelle pour le premier trimestre de 1947. 

De l'avis de la delegation de l'URSS, cette 
politique de restriction des echanges avec les 
pays de l'Europe orientale constitue un 
obstacle ala paix. Elle empeche la reconstruc
tion et le developpement de l'eeonomie euro
peenne et de l'economie mondiale, et engendre 
de nouvelles difficultes dans les relations entre 
les Membres des Nations Unies. 

Les spheres dirigeantes des Etats-Unies 
essaient d'imposer aux pays « marshallises n 

cette mcme politique discriminatoire, dans 
leurs echanges avec les pays de l'Europe orien
rale. M. McNeil, representant du Royaume
Uni, et les representants d'autres pays de 
l'Europe occidentale, ont tente de le nier. Ils 
ont declare que les Etats-Unis n'exer<_;aient 
aucune pression sur leur commerce exterieur. 

On ne pouvait naturellement pas s'attendre 
a une autre declaration. Mais, d'apres une 
information de source autorisee, publiee le 
12 aout 1948 par le bureau de Londres de la 
United Press, des fonctionnaires americains et 
anglais poursuivent actuellement des negocia-

216 



carrying on secret negotiations concerning 
the prohibition of exports of rubber, 
generators, diesel motors and other goods to 
the USSR. United Kingdom official circles 
had stated that the export of certain 
manufactured commodities had alreadv 
been discontinued, and the United Press had 
further reported that disagreements between 
United Kingdom and United States officials 
had arisen regarding the export of a number 
of commodities which were not explicitly 
mentioned. 

That United Press report showed 
conclusively that secret negotiations were 
being carried on between the United Kingdom 
and United States Governments concerning 
United Kingdom external trade policy towards 
the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics. 
Although the negotiations were secret, it 
was no secret that they were connected with 
the obligations of the United Kingdom Govern
ment in connexion with the Marshall Plan. 

In the light of that United Press report and 
of a number of other facts at its disposal, 
the USSR delegation found it impossible to 
consider the statement of Mr. McNeil and 
those of other representatives as anything but 
a diplomatic smoke-screen designed to hide 
from public opinion their secret negotiations 
regarding the Marshall Plan, which in fact 
provided for United States control over 
United Kingdom trade with the Union of 
Soviet Socialist Republics and other Eastern 
European countries. 

The representative of France had said that, 
to accomplish its ends, propaganda could 
resort to any weapon, even spreading the most 
blatant lies. The French representative 
wished to hide the unpleasant truth from 
world public opinion by making mere 
propaganda statements which had nothing in 
common with actual truth. Truth, however, 
could not be hidden. One of the basic aspects 
of the Marshall Plan was the right of the 
United States to control the economy of the 
countries brought under the plan; that 
included its right to control their foreign 
trade with Eastern European countries. 

An article which appeared in the newspaper 
Le Monde, on the day following the French 
representative's statement, had quoted the 
head of the Political Department of 
Switzerland as stating that "American control 
over our economy would not be justified." 
He had added that, after lengthy negotiations 
with United States authorities, it had been 
decided that the bilateral agreement between 
Switzerland and the United States in 
connexion with the Marshall Plan would not 
be concluded. That statement merely 
corroborated what the Norwegian represen
tative had said: that the aid received must 
be paid for. The payment was precisely 
in the form of United States control over the 
foreign trade of the countries under the 
Marshall Plan. 

tions secretes tendant a !'interdiction des 
exportations de caoutchouc, de generateurs, 
de moteurs Diesel et d'autres articles vers 
l'URSS. Les milieux officiels britanniques ont 
declare que !'exportation de certains articles 
manufactures etait d'ores et deja suspendue, et 
la United Press a annonce par la suite que des 
desaccords se sont eleves entre fonctionnaires 
britanniques et americains au sujet de !'expor
tation de certains articles, qui ne sont pas 
expressement indiques. 

Cette information de la United Press- prouve, 
de toute evidence, que des negociations-secre
tes sont actuellement en cours entre le Gouver
ment du Royaume-Uni et le Gouvernement 
des Etats-Unis d'Amerique, touchant la poli
tique commerciale exterieure du Royaume
Uni a l'egard de !'Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques. Quoique les negociations 
soient tenues secretes, ce n'est un secret pour 
personne qu'elles se rapportent aux obliga
tions du Gouvernement du Royaume-Uni 
decoulant du Plan Marshall. 

A la lumiere de cette information de la 
United Press et de nombreux autres faits 
dont elle a connaissance, la delegation de 
l'URSS estime impossible de considerer la 
declaration de M. McNeil, et celles d'autres 
representants, autrement que comme un rideau 
de fumee diplomatique, destine a cacher a 
!'opinion publique leurs negociations secretes 
relatives au Plan, Marshall, qui assure, en fait, 
le controle des Etats-Unis d'Amerique sur le 
commerce du Royaume-Uni avec !'Union des 
Republiques socialistes sovietiques et les autres 
pays de !'Europe orientale. 

Le representant de la France a dit que, pour 
arriver a ses fins, la propagande peut utiliser 
toutes les armes, meme celle qui consiste a 
repandre les mensonges les plus flagrants. Le 
representant de la France veut cacher a !'opi
nion publique mondiale la desagreable verite 
en faisant la des declarations de pure propa
gande, qui n'ont rien de commun avec la 
verite. On ne peut pas, cependant, cacher la 
verite. L'un des aspects essentiels du Plan 
Marshall, c'est le droit pour les Etats-Unis de 
controler l'economie des pays beneficiaires de 
ce plan, y compris le droit de controler leur 
commerce exterieur avec les pays de !'Europe 
orientale. 

Un article paru dans le journal Le Monde, 
au lendemain de la declaration faite par le 
representant de la France, cite une declara
tion du chef du Departement politique de 
Suisse, suivant laquelle « le controle amcricain 
sur notre economic ne serait pas justific )). II a 
ajoute qu'apres d'assez longues ncgociations 
avec les autoritcs des Etats-Unis d'Amerique, 
on a decide que !'accord bilateral entre la 
Suisse et les Etats-Unis relatif au Plan Mar
shall ne serait pas conclu. Cette declaration 
ne fait que corroborer ce qu'a dit le represen
tant de la Norvege, a savoir que l'aide que 
l'on re<;oit, il faut la payer. Ce paiement, c'est 
precisement le controle des Etats-Unis sur le 
commerce exterieur des pays beneficiaires du 
Plan Marshall. 

217 



He wished to remind the representative 
of .France that during the very first year of 
the application of the Marshall Plan, steel 
production in the Ruhr basin had increased 
and had exceeded the production of steel in 
France. That fact could be explained in 
different ways, but it could not be denied. 

He recalled that the French Government 
had repeatedly stated that its security 
depended in part on preventing the 
reconstruction of the German industrial 
war potential. At the same time it was 
known that, as a result of the intervention 
of Mr. Hoffman, the Administrator of the 
Marshall Plan, the dismantling of German 
enterprises earmarked for reparations was 
being discontinued, and the volume of German 
heavy industry, particularly the metallurgical 
industry, was being correspondingly re
adjusted. The French Government had hence 
renounced its basic demand for control over 
the production and direction of heavy industry 
in the Ruhr basin. Thus, under cover of the 
Marshall Plan, the German industrial war 
potential was being restored. 

The United States representative had stated 
that the concept of industrial potential was 
not a clear one. Perhaps that was so as far 
as the United States representative was 
concerned, but the peoples of Europe had 
twice in the lifetime of one generation 
experienced the tragic effects of the German 
industrial war potential. They had not 
forgotten that, after the First World War, 
the German industrial war potential was 
restored with the direct support of United 
States capital to German cartels. Nothing 
could hide from them the fact that at present, 
after the Second World War, United States 
ruling circles were again restoring the industrial 
war potential of Germany, although they were 
doing so not openly as before, but under the 
shield of the Marshall Plan. At the same 
time, United States monopolistic circles feared 
the competition of German peace industries, 
which, if restored, could provide for the 
peace-time needs of the German people and 
include exports. 

The representatives of the United Kingdom, 
France and other Western European countries 
had stated in the Committee that the 
Marshall Plan was their only salvation. 
If that was so, it was a poor reflection on the 
ruling circles of those countries and pointed 
to their complete bankruptcy as regards the 
reconstruction and development of the 
economy of their countries. Apparently the 
foundation of the contemporary social
economic system was rotten to the core. 

The Marshall Plan cleverly utilized the 
difficult position of the ruling circles of 
France, the United Kingdom and other 
countries, subordinating their internal and 

Le representant de l'Union des Republiques 
socialistes sovietiques tient a rappeler au 
representant de la France que, pendant la 
premiere annee meme de !'application du Plan 
Marshall, la production d'acier dans le bassin 
de la Ruhr a augmente et a depasse la produc
tion d'acier en France. On peut expliquer ce 
fait de differentes fa~ons, mais on ne peut pas 
le nier. 

Il rappelle que le Gouvernement fran~ais a 
maintes fois declare que sa securite dependait 
en partie des mesures que l'on prendrait pour 
empecher la reconstitution du potentiel indus
triel de guerre de l'Allemagne. D'autre part, on 
sait qu'a la suite d'une intervention de 
M. Hoffman, Administrateur du Plan Marshall, 
le demantelement des entreprises allemandes 
prevu au titre des reparations est suspendu et 
que la capacite de production fixee pour l'in
dustrie lourde allemande, particuW~rement 
pour l'industrie metallurgique, est revisee en 
consequence. Ainsi, le Gouvernement fran
<;ais renonce a sa pretention capitale de 
controler la production et la direction de 
l'industrie lourde, dans le bassin de la Ruhr. 
Ainsi, sous le couvert du Plan Marshall, le 
potentiel industriel de guerre allemand se 
reconstitue. 

Le representant des Etats-Unis d'Amerique 
a dit que la notion de p!M:entiel industriel 
n'etait pas une notion tres claire. ll se peut 
qu'il en soit ainsi pour le representant des 
Etats-Unis d'Amerique; mais les peuples 
d'Europe, eux, ont eprouve par deux fois en 
une generation les effets tragiques du potentiel 
industriel de guerre de l'Allemagne. Ils n'ont 
pas oublie qu'apres la premiere guerre mon
diale ce potentiel de guerre a ete reconstitue 
grace a l'appui direct que le capital americain 
a fourni aux cartels allemands. Rien ne peut 
les empecher de voir qu'aujourd'hui encore, 
apres la deuxieme guerre mondiale, les cercles 
dirigeants des Etats-Unis sont en train de 
reconstituer le potentiel industriel de guerre 
de l'Allemagne, encore qu'ils ne le fassent plus 
directement comme jadis, mais sous le couvert 
du Plan Marshall. En meme temps, dans les 
cercles des monopoles americains, on craint la 
concurrence des industries allemandes autres 
que les industries de guerre. Ces industries, si 
elles etaient restaurees, pourraient subvenir 
aux besoins du temps de paix du peuple alle
mand en lui permettant egalement d'exporter 
les produits de ces industries. 

Les representants du Royaume-Uni, de Ia 
France et d'autres pays d'Europe occidentale 
ont declare a la Commission que le Plan Mar· 
shall etait leur seule vraie voie de salut. Si 
c'est vrai, ce n'est pas tres flatteur pour les 
cercles dirigeants de ces pays, et cela montre 
a quel point leur faillite est complete en ce qui 
concerne la reconstruction et le developpe
ment des economies de leurs pays respectifs. 
II faut croire que les fondements memes du 
systeme social et economique contemporain 
sont pourris jusqu'au cceur. 

Le Plan Marshall utilise habilement la 
situation difficile ou se trouvent les cercles 
dirigeants de France, du Royaume-Uni et 
d'autres pays, en subordonnant leur politique 

218 



external policy, including economic policy, 
to the basic problems of its expansionist 
aims. The Marshall Plan aimed to divide 
Europe, which, in the economic field, meant 
trade discrimination with respect to Eastern 
European countries, and curtailment of trade 
between Eastern and Western Europe. That 
was all the more important for United States 
monopolies since it promoted the creation 
of more favourable conditions for the sale of 
United States products in Europe. 

The United States representative had 
attempted to justify trade discrimination 
with respect to Eastern European countries 
by statements about the so-called 
aggressiveness of the Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics. Those false assertions were 
repeated innumerable times, but it was 
obvious that, by his statements concerning 
USSR aggression, the representative of the 
United States was attempting to cover up 
the fact that it was the United States and not 
the USSR, which had military bases scattered 
outside its territory, over different parts of the 
world. 

The USSR wanted peace. The USSR 
Government had been born 81 years previously 
while fighting for peace. From the very 
beginning the USSR Government had 
consistently followed a policy aimed at peace. 
After the Second World War the USSR was 
interested in peace all the more, since it 
was faced with the tremendous task of 
reconstructing and developing its post-war 
economy. It had already achieved a measure 
of success in that task. 

The industrial production of the USSR for 
the first nine months of 1948 had exceeded 
the pre-war level of 1940 by 17 per cent, in 
spite of all attempts to obstruct reconstruction 
and development. The characteristic feature 
of USSR economy was its freedom from 
dependence on other countries in the technical 
and economic fields. The USSR could 
produce everything that it needed. During 
its Five-Year Plans it had built up a first
class heavy industry and large-scale 
agriculture. It had a wealth of different 
natural resources; its people had created 
the most progressive social-economic organ
ization and faced the future with confidence. 
Trade discrimination could not frighten the 
Union of Soviet S<;>cialist Republics. 

All those facts, however, did not prevent its 
participation in the international division of 
labour. It proceeded on the assumption 
that two different economic systems could 
exist side by side, and could co-operate if 
they had the desire to do so. The USSR 
delegation considered that the development 
of trade between countries with differing 
economic systems was the basis for developing 
co-operation between them. 

interieure et etrangere, y compris la politique 
economique, aux necessites premieres d'un 
expansionnisme dont ce plan est !'expression. 
Le Plan Marshall a pour objet de diviser 
!'Europe, ce qui revient, dans le domaine 
economique, a pratiquer une politique de 
discrimination commerciale a l'egard des pays 
d'Europe orientale et a reduire les echanges 
entre l'Europe orientale et !'Europe occiden
tale. L'entreprise est d'autant plus importante 
pour les monopoles americains que le Plan 
facilite egalement l'instauration d'un etat de 
chases favorable a la vente en Europe des 
produits americains. 

Le representant des Etats-Unis a tente de 
justifier la discrimination pratiquee en matiere 
de commerce a l'egard des pays d'Europe 
orientale en faisant etat d'une pretendue 
agressivite de l'Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques. Ces fausses assertions ont 
ete repetees un nombre incalculable de fois, 
mais il est clair qu'en faisant ses declarations 
sur ~'agressivite de l'URSS le representant 
des Etats-Unis a cherche a cacher ce fait que 
ce sont les Etats-Unis, et non pas l'URSS, 
qui possedent hors de leur territoire des bases 
militaires dispersees dans diverses parties du 
monde. 

L'URSS veut la paix. Le Gouvernement de 
l'URSS est ne il y a trente et un ans au cours 
d'une lutte pour la paix. Le Gouvernement de 
l'URSS a suivi constamment, depuis le debut, 
une politique qui vise a assurer la paix. Apres 
la seconde guerre mondiale, l'URSS est 
d'autant plus interessee au maintien de la 
paix qu'elle se trouve en face du probleme 
immense de la reconstruction et du developpe
ment de son economic d'apres guerre. Dans 
cette tache, elle a deja obtenu un notable succes. 

Pendant les neuf premiers mois de 1948, la 
production industrielle de l'URSS a depasse 
de 17 pour 100 celle de 1940, c'est-a-dire celle 
d'avant guerre, malgre toutes les tentatives 
faites pour empecher sa reconstruction et son 
developpement. La caracteristique de l'eco
nomie de l'URSS est qu'elle ne depend nulle
ment des autres pays dans des domaines 
techniques et economiques. L'URSS peut 
produire tout ce dont elle a besoin. Grace a 
ses plans quinquennaux, elle a monte une 
industrie lourde de premier ordre et de vastes 
exploitations agricoles. Elle est riche en 
ressources naturelles diverses ; son peuple a 
cree !'organisation economique et sociale la 
plus avancee qui soit ; aussi regarde-t-il 
l'avenir avec confiance. Des pratiques de 
discrimination commerciale ne sauraient emou
voir l'Union des Republiques socialistes sovie
tiques. 

Taus ces faits, cependant, ne l'empechent 
pas de prendre sa part de la division du travail 
sur le plan international. Son action se guide 
sur le postulat que deux systemes economiques 
differents peuvent subsister cote a cote et 
peuvent cooperer si de part et d'autre on le 
desire. La delegation de l'URSS estime que le 
developpement du commerce entre les pays 
qui possedent des systemes economiques diffe
rents est le fondement meme du developpe
ment de leur cooperation mutuelle. 

219 



The USSR would continue to develop its 
external trade with all countries which wished 
to trade with it on mutually advantageous 
terms. The achievements of the USSR in 
the reconstruction and development of its 
internal economy would enable it to continue 
developing its external trade relations, 
particularly with European countries. The 
USSR was ready to increase its export of 
commodities such as grains, fertilizer, ores, 
forest products, oil products and by-products, 
tools, etc., which were essential for the 
reconstruction and development of European 
economy. 

On the basis of those facts, the USSR 
representative at the third session of the 
Economic Commission for Europe, had sub
mitted a proposal to set up, within the 
framework of the Commission, working organs 
to foster the development of those branches of 
industry which were of greatest importance 
to European countries in the post-war period. 
Those working organs would also foster the 
development of the agriculture of European 
countries and would promote the development 
of trade between them. It was a well known 
fact that the delegations of the United States 
and the United Kingdom had objected to that 
proposal. As a result of that objection, the 
Economic Commission for Europe had adopted 
a compromise decision to create an ad hoc 
Committee to consider the USSR proposal. 

The Executive Secretary of the Economic 
Commission for Europe had submitted a 
rPport which proposed the creation of a 
permanent committee to consider questions 
relating to industry and trade. The 
representative of a number of European 
countries, including France and Sweden, had 
originally supported that proposal but the 
representatives of the United States and the 
United Kingdom had done everything in 
their power to prevent the adoption of 
decisions which could have promoted the 
reconstruction and development of the 
industry of European countries in accordance 
with their national interests. The majority 
in thc- ad hoc Committee had confined itself 
to adopting a limited decision; to create a 
committee on trade alone. 

The USSR delegution believed that, under 
present conditions, the basic form of agreement 
between European countries was the bilateral 
agreement. If observed conscientiously, such 
agreements were capable of ensuring that the 
interest of all countries, large and small, 
would be taken into account. 

It must be kept in mind that the bilateral 
agreement did not exclude the application 
of various forms of multilateral trade. Any 
trade or payments must ensure the respective 
interests of the participating countries and 
must be the result of agreement between 
them; they must not create disadvantageous 
conditions for the economy of weaker 
countries, particularly since trade 
discrimination towards Members of the 
United Nations was inadmissible. 

L'URSS continuera a developper son 
commerce exterieur avec tous les pays qui 
desirent commercer avec elle a des conditions 
avantageuses pour les deux parties. Les 
resultats qu'elle a acquis dans Ia reconstruc
tion et le developpement de son economie 
interne lui permettront de continuer a deve
lopper ses relations commerciales avec l'exte
rieur, particulierement avec les pays euro
peens. L'URSS est prete a accroitre ses expor
tations de produits tels que cereales, engrais, 
minerais, produits forestiers, produits petro
liers et sous-produits du petrole, outillage, etc., 
qui sont essentiels a la reconstruction et au 
developpement de l'economie europeenne. 

Se fondant sur ces faits, le representant de 
l'URSS a presente a Ia troisieme session de Ia 
Commission economique pour !'Europe une 
proposition tendant a creer, dans le cadre de 
cette Commission, des organes de travail, 
appeles a encourager le developpement des 
branches de l'industrie qui presentent le plus 
d'importance pour les pays europeens dans la 
periode d'apres guerre. Ces organes de travail 
encourageraient aussi le developpement agri
cole des pays europeens et le developpement de 
leurs echanges. II est bien connu que les dele
gations des Etats-Unis d'Amerique et du 
Royaume-Uni se sont opposees a ces propo
sitions. Le resultat de cette opposition est 
que la Commission economique pour !'Europe 
a adopte une solution de compromis, en deci
dant de creer un comite special pour examiner 
la proposition de l'URSS. 

Le Secretaire executif de la Commission 
economique pour l'Europe a presente un 
rapport oil il est propose de creer un comite 
permanent pour l'examen des questions rela
tives a l'industrie et au commerce. Les repre
sentants d'un certain nombre de pays euro
peens, y compris la France et la Suede, ant 
tout d'abord appuye cette proposition, mais 
les representants des Etats-Unis d'Amerique 
et du Royaume-Uni ont fait tout ce qui etait 
en leur pouvoir pour empecher que l'on ne pri:t 
les decisions qui auraient pu faciliter la 
reconstruction et le developpement industriels 
des pays europeens, conformement a leurs 
interets nationaux. La majorite du Comite 
special s'est bornee a adopter une decision 
tronquee, portant creation d'un comite qui 
s'occupera uniquement du commerce. 

La delegation de l'URSS croit que, dans les 
circonstances actuelles, les relations commer
ciales entre pays europeens doivent se fonder 
sur des accords bilateraux. Ces accords, s'ils 
sont observes consciencieusement, sauve
gardent les interets de tous les pays, grands et 
petits. 

II faut se rappeler que les accords bilateraux 
n'excluent pas diverses formes de commerce 
multilateral. Tout commerce et tous paiements 
doivent repondre aux interets respectifs des 
parties et doivent s'effectuer aux termes d'un 
accord conclu entre elles. Ils ne doivent pas 
creer de situation desavantageuse pour des 
pays economiquement plus faibles, d'autant 
plus que les principes de discrimination 
commerciale ne devraient pas etre admis 
envers des Membres des Nations Unies. 

220 



Those were the basic considerations which 
prompted the USSR delegation to support 
the Polish draft resolution, which fully satisfied 
the above requirements. 

In conclusion, Mr. Arutiunian wished to 
comment on certain questions raised by the 
representatives of the United States and the 
United Kingdom, although those questions 
bore no relation to the matter at hand. The 
United States representative had stated that 
his Government had taken upon itself the 
task of obtaining the agreement of other 
Governments to the inclusion of the principle 
of non-discrimination in the peace treaties 
with the Balkan countries. 

The USSR representative assumed that 
reference was made to article 31 of the Peace 
Treaty with Roumania, article 29 of the Peace 
Treaty with Bulgaria, and article 33 of the 
Peace Treaty with Hungary. The biased 
nature of the statement was blatant. The 
fact was that divergency of views on that 
question had arisen not only with respect to 
the Peace Treaties with Balkan countries but 
also with respect to the Peace Treaties with 
Italy and Finland. The United States 
representative could be reminded that 
article 82 of the Peace Treaty with Italy and 
article 30 of the Peace Treaty with Finland 
reproduced textually the above-mentioned 
articles of the Peace Treaties concluded with 
Balkan countries. 

· The USSR had believed that a peace treaty 
with a defeated nation should not include 
provisions giving the victorious nations 
economic privileges. The USSR delegation 
considered that the economic relations to be 
established between victorious and defeated 
nations should be the result of negotiations 
between the countries concerned. It 
proceeded on the basis of the fact that 
defeated countries were seriously weakened 
as a result of the war, whereas some of 
the victorious countries had become 
considerably richer in the course of it. 
Affording equal opportunities to such 
unequal partners would mean, in fact, that 
the country which had suffered as a result 
of the war would be economically subjugated. 

The lengthy discussion on that matter 
held by the four great Powers had lead to the 
adoption of a compromise solution, written 
into the above-mentioned articles of the Peace 
Treaties with Italy, Roumania, etc. That 
compromise decision greatly differed from 
what the United States Government had 
demanded at the beginning. 

The representative of the United States had 
also stated that his country had insisted, 
though in vain, on the recognition of the 
principle on non-discrimination at the 
conference held in Belgrade on the navigation 
on the Danube. That statement was also 
completely unfounded. The Convention 
on Navigation on the Danube, drafted at 
the Belgrade conference, did not include a 
single article concerning discrimination 
in commercial shipping. On the contrary, 
clearly underlying the convention was the 

Telles sont les considerations fondamentales 
qui ont pousse la delegation de l'URSS a 
soutenir le projet de resolution polonais qui 
repond parfaitement a ces conditions. 

Pour finir, M. Aroutiounian desire faire 
quelques commentaires sur certaines_ questions 
soulevees par les representants des Etats-Unis 
d'Amerique et du Royaume-Uni, quoique ces 
questions n'aient pas trait aux sujets dont 
on discute. Le representant des Etats-Unis 
d'Amerique a declare que son Gouvernement 
avait pris sur lui d'obtenir l'accord des autres 
Gouvernements pour que le principe de non
discrimination soit inclus dans les traites de 
paix signes avec les pays balkaniques. 

Le representant de l'URSS suppose qu'il 
s'agit d'une reference a !'article 31 du traite 
de paix avec Ia Roumanie, a !'article 29 du 
traite de paix avec la Bulgarie et a !'article 33 
du traite de paix avec Ia ~ongrie. La decla
ration du representant des Etats-Unis d'Ame
rique est d'un parti pris flagrant. Le fait est 
que des divergences de vues se sont fait jour 
sur cette question, non seulement en ce qui 
concerne les traites de paix avec les pays 
balkaniques, mais aussi en ce qui concerne les 
traites de paix avec l'Italie et la Finland_e. On 
pourrait rappeler au representant des Etats
Unis d'Amerique que !'article 82 du traite de 
paix avec l'Italie et !'article 30 du traite de 
paix avec la Finlande sont identiques aux 
articles mentionnes ci-dessus des traites de 
paix conclus avec les pays balkaniques. 

L'URSS estime qu'un traite de paix conclu 
avec un pays vaincu ne doit pas comporter de 
dispositions qui donnent des privileges d'ordre 
economique aux nations victorieuses. La dele
gation de l'URSS pense que les relations eco
nomiques entre nations victorieuses et vaincues 
devraient s'etablir par voie de negociation 
entre les pays interesses. La delegation de 
l'URSS a donne une importance fondamentale 
au fait que les pays vaincus etaient serieuse
ment affaiblis par les resultats de la guerre, 
alors que certains pays victorieux se sont 
beaucoup enrichis pendant la guerre. Si l'on 
donnait des possibilites egales a des parte
naires aussi inegaux, cela reviendrait a dire, 
en fait, que le pays qui a souffert de la guerre 
serait economiquement asservi. 

Une longue discussion a ce sujet entre les 
quatre grandes Puissances a conduit a 
!'adoption d'une solution de compromis qui 
est inscrite aux articles susmentionnes des 
traitcs de paix avec l'Italie, la Roumanie, etc. 
Cette mesure de compromis differe grandement 
des exigences originales du Gouvernement des 
Etats-Unis d'Amerique. 

Le representant des Etats-Unis d'Amerique 
a dit egalement que son pays a insiste pour 
que le principe de non-discrimination soit 
reconnu a la Conference sur la navigation du 
Danube qui a ete tenue a Belgrade. Cette 
declaration est, elle aussi, absolument denuee 
de fondement. La convention sur la naviga
tion du Danube, qui a ete redigee a Ia Confe
rence de Belgrade, ne contient pas une seule 
clause discriminatoire portant sur le commerce 
fluvial. Bien au contraire, le principe de la 
navigation libre qui ouvre le Danube au 

221 



principle of open and free navigation. 

Quoting article 1 of the convention, the 
USSR representative pointed out that it 
was in complete harmony with the decision 
of the Council of Foreign Ministers and 
reproduced word for word the texts of the 
corresponding articles of the Peace Treaties 
with Roumania and other Danubian countries. 
In spite of that, the representatives of the 
United States of America and of the United 
Kingdom at that conference had not voted in 
favour of that article, violating thereby the 
decision taken by the Council of Foreign 
Ministers. Articles 26, 40 and 41 of the 
convention, which were based on article 1, 
provided concrete measures to ensure free 
navigation on the Danube. 

The convention excluded any possibility of 
discrimination, for any motives whatsoever, 
in favour of the merchant navy of any country. 
The United States representative at the 
Belgrade conference had defended not the 
principle of non-discrimination, but the 
principle of affording non-Danubian countries 
special privileges for control over navigation 
on the Danube. It was self-evident that the 
conference could not agree to that. 

As regards the joint trade companies 
existing in a number of east European 
countries, the representative of the USSR 
stated that he had rarely heard such biased 
statements as those which the representatives 
of the United States and the United Kingdom 
had made. In the first place, they had 
ignored the decision of the three-Power 
Conference held in Berlin as well as the 
decision taken at the Paris Peace Conference, 
to transfer to the USSR German assets 
in Roumania, Bulgaria and Hungary. 

The peace treaties with those countries, 
in articles 26, 23 and 24 respectively, 
established the right of the USSR to claim 
all the German assets in those countries as 
reparations, and established the duty of those 
countries to take all necessary steps to 
transfer such assets. One must be logical; 
if a unanimously adopted decision provided 
that the German assets in those countries 
should be transferred to the USSR, it was 
consequently true that the USSR had the 
right to utilize those assets. Taking into 
consideration the fact that a considerable part 
of those assets constituted an immovable 
property and was an important element in the 
economy of the Balkan countries, the question 
immediately arose how best those assets could 
be utilized. 

Joint companies represented, in that 
connexion, the form of utilization which best 
ensured the interests both of the USSR and 
of the countries concerned. It must be borne 
in mind that those joint companies were set 
up as state concerns, on a basis of parity, 
with the chairmanship of the board of each 
company held by a representative of the 
country involved. The USSR did not receive 

commerce fluvial se retrouve a travers Ies 
diverses dispositions de cette convention. 

Citant !'article premier de Ia convention, 
le representant de l'URSS fait remarquer 
qu'il est en parfaite harmonic avec la decision 
du Conseil des Ministres des affaires etran
geres et qu'il reproduit mot pour mot les 
textes des articles correspondants des traites 
de paix avec la Roumanie et les autres pays 
danubiens. Neanmoins, les representants des 
Etats-Unis d'Amerique et du Royaume-Uni 
a cette Conference n'ont pas vote en faveur 
de !'article premier de la convention, violant 
ainsi la decision prise par le Conseil des 
Ministres des affaires etrangeres. Les articles 26 
40 et 41 de la convention, qui s'appuient sur 
!'article premier, prevoient des mesures 
concretes pour assurer la libre navigation sur 
le Danube. 

La convention exclut toute possibilite de 
discrimination, pour quelque motif que ce 
soit, s'exer<_;ant au benefice de la marine mar
chan?e d'un pays quelconque. Le representant 
des Etats-Unis ala Conference de Belgrade a 
defendu non pas le principe de la non-discri
mination, mais celui de !'octroi a des pays 
autres que les pays danubiens de privileges 
speciaux de controle sur la navigation du 
Danube. II va de soi que la Conference ne 
pouvait approuver ce principe. 

En ce qui concerne les societes commerciales 
mixtes qui existent dans un certain nombre 
de pays de l'est de !'Europe, le representant 
de l'URSS declare qu'il a rarement entendu 
des declarations aussi tendancieuses que celles 
qui ont ete faites par les representants des 
Etats-Unis et du Royaume-Uni. Tout d'abord, 
ils ne tiennent aucun compte de la decision 
prise lors de la Conference des trois Puissances 
tenue a Berlin, non plus que de la decision 
prise a la Conference de la Paix a Paris de 
transferer a l'URSS les avoirs allemands en 
Roumanie, en Bulgarie et en Hongrie. 

Les traites de paix signes avec ces pays 
etablissent, aux articles 26, 23 et 24 respecti
vement, le droit pour l'URSS de revendiquer 
a titre de reparations la totalite des avoirs 
allemands dans ces pays, ainsi que !'obliga
tion pour ces pays de prendre toutes les 
mesures necessaires pour le transfert desdits 
avoirs. II faut etre logique ; si une decision 
adoptee a l'unanimite a prevu que les avoirs 
allemands dans ces pays doivent etre trans
feres a l'URSS, il est exact par consequent 
que l'URSS a le droit d'utiliser ces memes 
avoirs. Si l'on tient compte du fait qu'une part 
considerable de ces avoirs represente des biens 
immeubles et constitue un element important 
de l'economie des pays balkaniques, la question 
se pose immediatement de savoir comment 
on peut les utiliser au mieux. 

Les societes mixtes representent sous ce 
rapport la forme d'utilisation la plus propre 
a garantir a la fois les interets de l'URSS et 
ceux des differents pays. II ne faut pas oublier 
que ces societes mixtes ont ete constituees 
en groupes appartenant aux Etats, sur Ia base 
de la parite, et que leur conseil d'administra
tion est obligatoirement preside par un repre
sentant de pays interesses. L'URSS n'a re~u 

222 



any privileges, and the entire activity of the 
joint companies was carried on according 
to the laws and provisions of the countries 
where they were set up. 

Mr. HYDER (Pakistan) analysing the Polish 
draft resolution, stated that it contained 
three parts: one which set forth its underlying 
theory; one which stated the case; and the 
last which proposed practical measures to 
solve the problem. 

Although the underlying theory was not 
very strongly or logically constructed, the 
case presented was clear and could not 
be disregarded. As regards the practical 
measures proposed, however, an atmosphere 
of co-operation was needed before any decision 
could be taken. 

Discrimination was practised not only in the 
economic field but in the realm of ideas as 
well, and against persons. 

The representative of Pakistan was glad to 
note that the Polish resolution expressed the 
desire for larger and freer exchange of goods 
in the world. 

The Pakistan delegation believed that the 
best course to follow with respect to the 
resolution would be to await a time when 
greater political agreement would make such 
resolutions automatically unnecessary. He 
suggested that the Polish delegation should 
withdraw its proposal, for nothing would be 
gained if it were drastically altered by 
amendment. 

Mr. GALLAL EL DINE (Egypt) felt that, in 
spite of the different points of view, all the 
speakers arrived at the same conclusion: a 
condemnation of discrimination in the field 
of world economy. 

The Egyptian delegation had been glad to 
note that the representatives of the Union of 
Soviet Socialist Republics and New Zealand 
had agreed, in the joint Second and Third 
Committee, to draft a resolution on migration. 
It would be happy to see the representatives 
of the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, 
United States, United Kingdom and Poland 
unite, in spite of their differences, in the 
preparation of a draft resolution condemning 
discrimination in world trade. 

Such a step might avoid the adjournment 
of that important question, and Egypt would 
have played the role of a small mediator. 

Mr. LYCHOWSKI (Poland) found it somewhat 
difficult to answer the various remarks and 
objections he had heard during the discussion 
of the Polish draft resolution. Most of them 
did not directly concern the draft but referred 
to different matters more or less loosely 
connected with the principal issue and 
mentioned only in a marginal way by the 
head of the Polish delegation in his intro
ductory speech. He would discuss all the 

aucun privilege, et Pactivite tout entiere des 
societes mixtes s'exerce conformement aux 
lois et dispositions des pays ou elles ont ete 
creees. 

M. HYDER (Pakistan), analysant le projet 
de resolution de la delegation polonaise, fait 
remarquer qu'il contient trois parties : la 
premiere enonce la theorie de base; ladeuxieme 
expose la question, et Ia derniere propose des 
mesures pratiques pour resoudre le probleme. 

Bien que la theorie de base ne soit ni tres 
solidement, ni tres logiquement construite, Ia 
question soumise est claire et ne peut etre 
negligee. Cependant, en ce qui concerne les 
mesures pratiques proposees, il est necessaire, 
avant de prendre une decision, de creer une 
atmosphere de cooperation. 

La discrimination s'exerce non seulement 
dans le domaine economique, mais aussi dans 
celui des idees ; elle s'exerce contre des 
personnes. 

Le representant du Pakistan constate avec 
satisfaction que Ia resolution de la delegation 
polonaise exprime egalement le desir de voir 
se realiser un plus vaste et plus libre echange 
de marchandises dans le monde. 

La delegation du Pakistan est convaincue 
qu'en ce qui concerne cette resolution le 
mieux serait d'attendre le moment ou !'en
tente politique sera plus grande, ce qui ren
drait du meme coup inutiles de telles resolu
tions. II suggere que Ia delegation polonaise 
retire sa proposition, car il ne servirait a rien 
de la modifier radicalement par un amen
dement. 

M. GALAL EL DINE (Egypte) constate qu'en 
depit de points de vue differents tous les 
orateurs arrivent a la meme conclusion : ils 
condamnent la discrimination dans le domaine 
de l'economie mondiale. 

La delegation egyptienne remarque avec 
satisfaction !'accord que les representants de 
l'URSS et de la Nouvelle-Zelande ont convenu, 
a la Commissions mixte des Deuxieme et Troi
sieme Commissions, de presenter, un projet de 
resolution sur la migration. L'Egypte serait 
heureuse de voir les representants de l'URSS, 
des Etats-Unis d'Amerique, du Royaume-Uni 
et de la Pologne s'entendre, en depit de leurs 
desaccords, pour elaborer un projet de reso
lution condamnant la discrimination dans le 
commerce mondial. 

Une telle mesure permettrait d'eviter l'ajour
nement de cette importante question, et 
l'Egypte aurait joue J.a le role d'un modeste 
mediateur. 

M. LYCHOWSKI (Pologne) pense qu'il est 
assez difficile de repondre aux diverses 
remarques et objections qu'il a entendues au 
cours de la discussion du projet de resolution 
de la delegation polonaise. La plupart ne 
concernent pas directement le projet de reso
lution, mais ont trait a differents problemes 
n'ayant qu'un rapport plus ou moins lointain 
avec la question principale, et qui furent men
tionnes seulement en passant par le President 

223 



points raised by other representatives to 
show that they had little or no relationship 
with the principal issue before the Committee. 

The first of the problems, which had not 
been raised by the Polish draft resolution but 
had been merely mentioned in the course of 
the discussion, was that of Poland's attitude 
towards Western Germany. The United States 
representative had raised that subject on 
4 November when replying to the statement 
made by the Polish representative during the 
discussion of item 1 of the Committee's agenda 
on 14 October. 

The United States representative had dealt 
at great length with one particular piece of 
evidence the Polish delegation had adduced 
in support of its views on United States policy 
in Western Germany, namely, a quotation 
from the Paris edition of the New York Herald 
Tribune of 13 October. He had said that the 
Polish statement had been either "careless" 
or "malicious", as the article in question did 
not represent the views of General Clay but 
had been "sent to the New York Herald 
Tribune by an anonymous correspondent in 
Frankfurt", and that only some of its contents 
had quoted General Clay himself. However, 
as the article had been published only twenty
four hours before the Polish statement in 
question, it was clear that it had been used 
only as an additional proof in support of 
Poland's long-established opinions on the 
subject. 

The Polish delegation had quoted the article 
to the effect that United States aid for Western 
Germany amounted to about one-third of the 
total sum allocated to the European Recovery 
Programme, and that the present potential 
of Western German industry exceeded its 
1938 level. The United States representative 
had stated that "of the total amount for the 
first year of 4,875 million dollars (of ERP 
funds), 414 million dollars, or about 8 per 
cent, have been tentatively allocated to the 
British and American zones in Western Ger
many and 100 million dollars or about 
2 per cent have been allocated to the French 
zone." 

Although there was no reason to doubt 
the accuracy of those figures, it was also well 
known that funds had been allocated to 
Western Germany from other sources apart 
from the ERP, for instance some 700 to 
900 million dollars for food and consumer 
goods allocated out of the funds destined 
for "occupied areas" to prevent "unrest". 
That meant that Western Germany would 
receive between 1.2 and 1.4 million dollars 
during the current year, which amonted to 
about 25 to 28 per cent of the total amount 
provided for ERP. In view of those figures, 
the Polish delegation obviously had no cause 
for doubt when an admittedly well-informed 
United States correspondent in Germany had 

de Ia delegation polonaise, dans son discours 
d'introduction. L'orateur se propose de discu
ter toutes les questions soulevees par les autres 
representants afin de montrer qu'ils n'ont que 
peu ou pas de rapport avec la question princi
pale soumise a Ia .Commission. 

La premiere de ces questions, qui n'a pas ete 
soulevee dans le projet de resolution de la 
delegation polonaise, mais qui a ete men
tionnee au cours de la discussion, est celle de 
!'attitude de Ia Pologne vis-a-vis de l:Alle
magne occidentale. Le representant des Etats
Unis a souleve cette question le 4 novembre 
en repondant a Ia declaration faite le 14 octobre 
par le representant de la Pologne au cours de 
Ia discussion du point 1 de l'ordre du jour de 
Ia Commission. 

Le representant des Etats-Unis a discute 
longuement un argument que la delegation 
polonaise avait apport~ a l'appui de ses vues 
sur Ia politique des Etats-Unis dans l'Alle
magne occidentale. II s'agissait d'une citation 
tiree de !'edition de Paris du New York Herald 
Tribune du 13 octobre. Le representant des 
Etats-Unis a pretendu que la declaration de 
Ia delCgation polonaise etait soit inconsideree, 
soit mal intentionnee, car Particle en question 
ne representait pas l'opinion du general Clay. 
mais avait ete << envoye au New York Herald 
Tribune par un correspondant anonyme de 
Francfort >> ; et que certains passages seule
ment de cet article reproduisaient les propres 
paroles du general. L'article n'ayant ete public 
que vingt-quatre heures avant la declaration 
polonaise en question, il est clair qu'il n'avait 
servi que comme une nouvelle preuve a l'appui 
d'une these qui est depuis longtemps celle de 
Ia delegation polonaise. 

La delegation polonaise a cite l'artic}e en 
question pour montrer que l'aide des Etats
Unis a l'Allemagne de l'ouest s'eleve a un 
tiers environ de Ia somme totale attribuee au 
Programme d'aide a !'Europe, et que le poten
tiel actuel de l'industrie de l'Allemagne de 
l'ouest depasse son niveau de 1938. Le repre
sentant des Etats-Unis a declare que <<sur la 
somme totale de 4.875 millions de dollars que 
le Plan de relevement europeen prevoit pour 
la premiere annee, 414 millions de dollars, soit 
environ 8 pour 100, ont ete provisoirement 
attribues aux zones britannique et ameri
caine d'occupation en Allemagne, et 100 mil
lions de dollars, soit environ 2 pour 100, a Ia 
zone fran<;aise n. 

Bien qu'il n'y ait aucune raison de douter 
de !'exactitude de ces chiffres, il est bien 
connu egalement que l'on a attribue a l'Alle
magne de l'ouest des fonds provenant d'autres 
sources que le Plan de relevement europeen. 
Par exemple, quelque 700 a 900 millions de 
dollars attribues pour des denrees alimentaires 
et des biens de consommation, sur les fonds 
destines aux <<zones d'occupation n, pour pre
venir << des troubles n. Ce qui signifie que 
l'Allemagne de l'ouest recevrait de 1.200.000 a 
1.400.000 dollars pendant l'annee en cours, 
soit environ 25 a 28 pour 100 de la somme 
totale pre~ue pour le Plan de relevement 
europeen. Etant donne ces chiffres, Ia dele
gation polonaise n'a evidemment aucune 

224 



put the proportion at something like one
third of the total ERP amount. 

Regarding the second assertion of the United 
States representative that the word "potential" 
did not represent the "present industrial 
capacity" of Germany, he did not wish to go 
into any theoretical discussion on the meaning 
of that word. Much detailed information 
had been published in 1947 and 1948 on the 
industrial possibilities existing in Western 
Germany; it included full statistics regarding 
Western German industrial potential at the 
time when the so-called Clay-Douglas plan 
had been introduced, and showed the estimated 
capacity of German heavy industry in Bizonia 
in 1947. 

The capacity of the steel industry was 
shown as amounting to some 19.2 million tons, 
representing 29 per cent more than in 1936. 
The possible value of heavy machinery 
production was estimated at 775 million 
marks at 1936 prices, as against 690 millions 
in 1936, which represented 25 per cent more 
than the 1936 level. The capacity of light 
machinery production was estimated at 1,195 
million marks, which represented 55 per cent 
more than the real production in 1936, and 
the capacity of production of machine tools 
was shown as corresponding · to a value of 
259 million marks at 1936 prices, which was 
26 per cent more than in 1936. 

The corresponding percentages of increase 
were 71 per cent for precision tools, 55 per 
cent for electrical apparatus and 63 per cent 
for cement. The overall productive capacity 
in chemical industries amounted, in 1947, to 
4,194 million marks, namely, 80 per cent more 
than the 1936 production, while the different 
chemical industries varied in their increases 
above the 1936 level from 7 per cent, in basic 
chemical products, to 41 per cent in organic 
chemistry. 

That did not mean the Polish delegation 
believed that the so-called Clay-Douglas plan 
had developed all the existing capacity of 
production, but it knew that such capacity 
did exist and had had every right, therefore, 
to accept as fully true the New York Herald 
Tribune report that "the industrial potential 
of Western Germany is still greater than that 
of 1938 despite air-raids and the dismantling 
programme." 

Speaking about the United States attitude 
towards the role of Western Germany in 
Europe, the United States representative had 
described the report of the Senate Foreign 
Relations Committee of 26 February 1948 as 
an "authoritative statement of American 
policy in that field." That report contained 
assurances that "requirements for Western 
Germany should not be given priority in the 
European Recovery Programme" and that 

raison de douter lorsqu'un correspondant des 
Etats-Unis en Allemagne, sans doute bien 
informe, evalue la proportion a environ un 
tiers de la somme totale prevue pour le Plan 
de relevement europeen. 

En ce qui concerne la deuxieme assertion 
du representant des Etats-Unis, qui pretend 
que le mot « potentiel » ne represente pas la 
« capacite industrielle actuelle» de l'Alle
magne, M. Lychowski ne desire pas se lancer 
dans une discussion theorique sur le sens de 
ce mot. Des informations nombreuses et 
detaillees ont ete publiees en 1947 et 1948 sur 
les possibilites industrielles qui existent dans 
l'Allemagne occidentale; elles comprennent 
des statistiques completes concernant le poten
tiel industriel de l'Allemagne de !'ouest a 
l'epoque ou a ete introduit le plan dit plan 
Clay-Douglas. Ces statistiques indiquent la 
capacite estimative de l'industrie lourde alle
mande dans la bizone en 1947. 

La capacite de l'industrie siderurgique se 
montait, d'apres ces informations, a environ 
19.200.000 tonnes, soit 29 pour 100 de plus 
qu'en 1936. La valeur possible de la pro
duction de l'industrie lourde etait estimee a 
775 millions de marks, d'apres les prix de 1936, 
contre 690 millions en 1936, soit 25 pour 100 
de plus que le niveau de 1936. La capacite de 
production de l'industrie Iegere etait estimee 
a 1.195 millions de marks, soit 55 pour 100 de 
plus que la production reelle de 1936, et la 
capacite de production des machines-outils 
correspondait a une valeur de 259 millions de 
marks, d'apres les prix de 1936, soit 26 pour 100 
de plus qu'en 1936. 

Les pourcentages d'augmentation corres
pondants etaient de 71 pour 100 pour les 
outils de precision, 55 pour 100 pour les 
appareils electriques et 63 pour 100 pour le 
ciment. La capacite de production totale de 
l'industrie chimique s'elevait en 1947 a 
4.194 millions de marks, soit 80 pour 100 
de plus que la production de 1936, tandis que 
les differentes industries chimiques mon
traient, par rapport au niveau de 1936, des 
augmentations allant de 7 pour 100 pour les 
produits chimiques de base, a 41 pour 100 pour 
la chimie organique. 

La delegation polonaise ne croit pas pour 
autant que le plan dit plan Clay-Douglas ait 
developpe toute la capacite de production de 
l'Allemagne de l'ouest, mais elle sait que cette 
capacite existe reellement, et, en consequence, 
elle a le droit d'admettre comme parfaitement 
vrai le compte rendu du New York Herad 
Tribune qui declare que « le potentiel industriel 
de 1' Allemagne occidentale est encore plus 
grand qu'en 1938 malgre les raids aeriens et 
le programme de demantelement "· 

Parlant de !'attitude des Etats-Unis d'Ame
rique en ce qui concerne le rOle de 1' Allemagne 
occidentale en Europe, le representant des 
Etats-Unis d'Amerique a qualifie le rapport 
du Comite des relations etrangeres du Senat, 
paru le 26 fevrier 1948, de « declaration auto
risee sur la politique americaine dans ce 
domaine n. Ce rapport affirme que « les besoins 
de l'Allemagne occidentale n'auront pas priorite 
dans le Plan de relevement europeen • et 

225 



"no steps would be taken which would result 
in the resurgence of Germany as a military 
pow.er in Europe." But the same report 
indicated quite clearly that, "where the 
recovery of Europe as a whole could be 
advanced more rapidly by supplying additional 
essential goods and services to Germany rather 
than ·to other participating countries, then 
such a course would seem justifiable." That 
was where Poland disagreed most emphatically 
with tthe policy of the United States. 

The Polish delegation wished to stress once 
more that the reconstruction of ·Germany's 
economy could not be regarded as a purely 
economic or technical problem and that it 
involved many other considerations .and, in 
particular, that of the future security ~f 
Germany's neighbours. 

The present attempts of ·the ECA Admi
nistrat@T entirely to stop the dismantling 
of Germany's war industry had caused 
considerable concern, even in the Western 
European countries. On 5 November 1948, 
the Paris Right-wing paper Le Figaro had 
published the following dispatch from LGndon: 

"Does not the Western policy of German 
reconstruction within the framework of 
the Marshall Plan... entail serious dangers? ... 
It is no longer a secret that the agreement in 
principle which took place last week. on the 
delicate problems of reparations and 
dismantling constitutes, for the British Cabinet 
and for France, an opportunity for stubborn 
resistance to the request initially presented by 
Mr. Hoffman. The divergence of views 
which C>ccurred in this connexion between 
Washington and London represents the most 
serious storm yet encountered by the adminis
trati()n of Bizonia in the field of Anglo
American relations. English public opinion 
is still anxiOl:ls, as is shown by the repeated 
warnings published in the press about the 
United States tendency to raise the authorized 
level of German heavy industry above the 
yearly maximum of 10.7 million tons fixed 
last November. It is stated in London that 
this figure represents exactly the level of 
1936 when German rearmament was already 
in full swing." 

He felt his delegation had been fully 
justified in drawing the Committee's attention 
to those developments concerning Western 
German industry and that it could hardly be 
accused of "carelessness" or "malice" for 
having attributed some of the information 
given in the New York Heral Tribune article to 
General Clay himself, for, after all, was it not 
he who was mainly responsible for that policy? 

In the course of his speech, the head of the 
Polish delegation had also mentioned in a 
few words the possible influence which the 
United States might exercise over Western 
European countries participating in ERP 

« qu'aucune mesure ne sera prise qui amene
rait le renaissance de l'Ailemagne en tant que 
puissance militaire en Europe n. Mais ce meme 
rapport dit clairement que, «dans le cas ou le 
relevement de !'Europe dans son ensemble 
pourrait s'effectuer plus rapidement en four
nissant un supplement de produits essentitils 
et de services a l'Allemagne plutot qu'aux 
autres pays beneficiaires, une telle ligne ·de 
conduite se justifierait ». ·C'est sur ce point 
que Ia Pologne est foncierement en desacco:rd 
awec la politique des Etats..:lJnis d'Amerique. 

La delegation de Ia Pologne desire insilrter 
une fois de plus sur le fait que -Ia reconstruc
tion de l'economie allemande ne peut ·etre 
consideree comme un probleme purement eoo
nomique et technique, et qu~elle impliqne 
beaucoup d'aut:res considerations :et, en pallti
culier, celle de la securite future des voisins de 
I' Allemagne. 

Les efforts actuels du chef de l' Administra
tion de Ia cooperation economique pour mettre 
entierement fin au demantet~ment de l'in
dustrie de guerre allemande ont provoque 
beaucoup d'inquietude meme panni les pays. 
de !'Europe occidentale. Le 5 novembre 1'948, 
Le Figaro, journal parisien de droite, a publie 
la depeche suivante en provenance de Londres : 

«La politique occidentale de reconstruction 
del'Allemagne dans le cadredu Plan Marshall .. . 
ne comporte-t-elle pas d'e graves dangers? .. . 
Ce n'est plus desormais un secret que !'accord 
de principe intervenu la semaine derniere sur 
le probleme delicat des reparations et du 
demontage a ete, pour le Cabinet britannique 
comme pour la Fran·ce, !'occasion d'une 
resistance opiniatre aux demandes que 
M. Hoffman avait d'abord formulees. Les 
divergences de vues qui se manifesterent sur 
ce plan entre Washington et Londres ful"ent, 
dans les relations anglo-americaines, l'orage 
le plus serieux auquel ait eu a faire faoe 
!'administration de la birone. Aujourd'hui 
encore, comme en temoignent dans Ia presse
des avertissements repetes, }'opinion anglaise· 
s'inquiete d'une tendance vivace aux. 
Etats-Unis a encourager le relevement du, 
niveau autorise des industries lourdes alle
mandes au-dessus du maximum annuel de 
10.700.000 tonnes fixe en novembre dernier. 
Ce niveau, fait-on remarquer a Londres, 
correspond exactement au chiffre de 1986, 
alors que le rearmement allemand etait deja 
en plein essor. '' 

L'orateur estime que sa delegation a eu 
pleinement raison d'attirer l'attention de la 
Commission sur ces faits nouveaux concernant 
l'industrie de l'Allemagne occidentale et qu'on 
ne peut guere lui reprocher des paroles 
« inconsiderees '' ou << mal intentionnees » lors
qu'elle attribue au general Clay lui-meme 
quelques-uns des renseignements parus dans 
!'article du New York Herald Tribune, car, 
apres tout, n'est-ce pas lui qui a l'entiere 
responsabilite de cette politique ? 

Au cours de son discours, le chef de Ia dele
gation polonaise a dit quelques m-ots de 
}'influence possible que les Etats-Unis pour
raient exercer sur les pays de l'Europe occi
dentale participant au Plan de relevement,. 

226 



as regards their exports to Eastern Europe. 
Although that point was rather loose 1 
connected with the draft resolution itself, i 
had given rise to several remarks by various 
delegations in the Committee. 

The Polish delegation had not asserted that 
Western European countries agreed to comply 
with United States requests to alter their 
export policies. He was gla.d that several 
delegations had found it necessa.ry to reaffirm 
that the bilateral agreements xecently . 
concluded with the United Sta..tes did not . 
bind them to any definite export policy in the • 
future, although one of the delegations had 
stated that its Government did not yet know 
what the effect of section ll7, point (d) of the 
Foreign Assistance Act of 1948 would be in 
practice, and another delegation had said 
something about the possibility of having 
"freely negotiated" agreements in that respect. 
On the whole, however, Western European 
countries were still in full control of rbb.eir 
e:x:port policies. 

Nonetheless, he felt that the Polish 
•delegation had been justified in raising that 
issue in its introductory speech. Trne enough, 
section 117, point (d) of the Foreign Assistance 
·Act, which directed the administrator to see 
that United States material provided under 
the Act should not be used for unauthorized 
purposes, was part of United States legislation. 
However, all the bilateral agreements 
concluded by the United States with countries 
participating in ERP contained the following 
·provision: 

'~(I') In order to achieve the maximum 
recovery through the employment of assistance 
received from the Government of the United 
States of America, the Government of ... 
will use its best endeavours: 

",(a) To .adopt or maintain the measures 
_necessary to ensure efficient amd practical use 
of all the resources .available to .it, including : 

"l. Such measures as may .be ·rmcessary 
Hto •ensure that :the -commodities and services 
obmined ~with assistance furniShed under 'this 
Agneement are used for purposes consistent 
witih this Agreement and, as far as practicable, 
·with the general .purposes -outlined in the 
schedules furniShed by the Government of ... 
in support of the requirements of assistance 
-to be .furnished by the Government of the 
United States .of America." 

That provision might enable the United 
States Government to place a participating 
country under the obligation to follow the 
same ·policy as the United States regarding 
exports to Eastern Europe. On 1'8 August 
1948 the Paris edition of the New 'York 
·Herald Trribune had published the following 
report: · 

"London. High-level negotiations now in 
progress between Great Britain and the United. 
States are to determine the scope of goods to · 
be banned from export to Russia and her 

en ce qui concerne leurs exportations vers 
l'Europe orientale. Bien que ce point n'ait 
que peu de relation avec le projet de reso
lution lui-meme, il a donne lieu a dive;rses 
remarques au sein de la Commission. 

La delegation de la Pologne n'a pas affirme 
que les pays de l'Europe occidentale ont 
accepte de se conformer aux demandes des 
Etats-Unis les prmnt de modifier leur poli
tique d'exportation. L'orateur est heureux de 
constater que plusieur.s delegations ont juge 
necessaire de reaffirmer que les accords bilate
raux recemment conclus avec les Etats-Unis 
ne les obligent pas a avoir dans l'avenir une 
politique d'exportation determinee. Une dele
·gation cependant a declare que .son Gouv~r.
nement ne savait pas encore quel 1ser.a.it 
l'.effet pratique de !'article 117, alinea d) ~~ 
la Loi de 1948 sur l'aide a l'etranger. Une autre: 
d6legaticm a parle a ce propos de la possibilite
de conclure des accords << librement ·negocies l)o. 

Dans !'ensemble, cependant, les pays de
l'Europe occidentale exercent toujours leur
pleine autorite sur leur politique d'expor
tation. 

Neanmoins, l'orateUT estime que la deM
gation de la Pologne a eu raison de soulever 
cette question dans son introduction. Certes, 
I' article ill 7, alinea ·d), de la Loi sur I' aide 
a l'etranger, qui charge 1''Admmistrateur de 
veiller a ce que le materiel ·americain fourni 
en vertu de cette loi ne soit pas utilise a des 
fjns illicites, fait partie de la legislation des 
Etats-Unis. Cependant, tousles accords bilate
raux conclus entre les Etats-Unis et les pays 
qui participent au PRE contiennent la dispo
sition suivante : 

« 1. Afin de parvenir a .son relevement 
maximum par !'utilisation de l'aide qu'il 
recevra du Gouvernement des Etats-Uriis 
d'Amerique, le Gouvernement de ... fera tous 
ses efforts pour : 

« a) Adopter ou maintenir en vigueur les 
mesures necessaires pour assurer de fa<;on 
rationnelle et efficace !'utilisation de toutes Ies 
ressources a sa disposition, y compris : 

« i) Telles mesures qui pourront etre neces
saires pour faire en sorte que les produits et 
services obtenus par l'aide accordee conforme
ment en present accord soient utilises a des 
fins conformes audit accord et dans toute la 
mesure du possible aux buts generaux indi
ques dans le programme presente par ·le Gou
vernement de ... au titre des besoins d~aide a 
satisfaire par le Gouvernement des Etats
Unis d'Amerique. n 

Cette disposition pourra permettre au Gou
vernement des Etats-Unis d'Amerique de 
placer un pays beneficiaire dans !'obligation de 
suivre la meme politique que celle des :Etats
Unis d'Amerique en ce qui concerne les expor
tations vers l'Europe orientale. Le 13 aout 
1948, le.New York Herald Tribune, edition de 
Paris, a publie la depeche suivante : 

<< Londres. - On a appris hier de source 
sure que des negociations importantes ont lieu 
actuellement entre la Grande-Bretagne et les 
Etats-Unis d'Amerique pour determiner quels 

227 



satellites for security reasons, it was reliably 
learned yesterday. 

"There is an agreement on a wide range of 
goods and commodities which both Britain 
and the United States consider should be 
excluded from the export list to the Soviet 
and Eastern European countries. They 
include both manufactured goods and raw 
materials which could be used by Russia to 
strengthen her war potential. 

"But, on a number of goods Britain and the 
United States disagree, with the British 
favouring their inclusion in future exports and 
the United States opposing. The British argue 
that the goods in question-not further 
specified-present no risk involving security 
and that their export would help to develop 
trade with Eastern Europe." 

A few lines further, the same United Press 
report stated the following: 

"British sources said that some contracts 
for metals recently supplied from American 
or American-controlled sources stipulated that 
the goods shall not be re-exported to Russia 
or to the satellite countries. But this 
procedure has not become general, the sources 
said. 

"Earlier it had been authoritatively stressed 
that, if any country receiving Marshall Plan 
aid shipped to Russia or her satellites goods 
which the United States had not been shipping, 
this would establish a case for initiating 
discussions by the aid Administrator with the 
country concerned.'' 

Those quotations from a source, which could 
hardly be described as "anonymous" explained 
why the Polish delegation had mentioned that 
problem in its introductory speech. 

When introducing the Polish draft 
resolution, the head of the Polish delegation 
had also touched upon the problem of 
commercial exchanges between Eastern 
and Western Europe. He was glad to note 
that all delegations on the Committee agreed 
wholeheartedly on the need for developing 
the so-called East-West trade. He was glad, 
together with the Netherlands representative, 
that, as far as his country was concerned, that 
trade had already reached its pre-war level, 
and he fully agreed with the United Kingdom 
representative that the success of Western 
European reconstruction was bound essentially 
with the East-West trade. 

Several delegations had mentioned the 
recent decision of an ad hoc Committee of 
the Economic Commission for Europe to 
establish a Committee on Development of 
Trade and had admitted at the same time that 
Eastern Europc::.n countries were not satis-

sont les articles qui, pour des raisons de secu
rite, ne pourront pas etre exportes vers l'Union 
des Republiques socialistes sovietiques ou vers 
ses satellites. 

« Un accord a ete conclu sur une grande 
quantite d'articles et de produits que la 
Grande-Bretagne et les Etats-Unis estiment 
devoir etre exclus de la liste de produits 
pouvant etre exportes vers les pays de !'Eu
rope orientale et vers !'Union des Republiques 
socialistes sovietiques. Ces produits compren
nent a la fois des articles manufactures et des 
matieres premieres qui pourraient etre utilises par 
la Russie pour renforcer son potentiel de guerre. 

« Mais, sur un certain nombre d'articles, la 
Grande-Bretagne et les Etats-Unis d'Amerique 
sont en desaccord, la Grande-Bretagne desi
rant les inclure dans ses exportations, et les 
Etats-Unis d'Amerique s'y opposant. Les 
representants britanniques soutiennent que les 
articles en question - qui ne sont pas autre
ment specifies - ne risquent pas de compro
mettre la securite et que leur exportation 
faciliterait le developpement du commerce 
avec !'Europe orientale. » 

Quelques lignes plus bas, on lit dans la 
meme depeche de la United Press : 

<< Dans certains milieux britanniques, on 
declare que quelques contrats portant sur des 
metaux de provenance americaine ou sous 
controle americain stipulent que ces produits 
ne doivent pas etre reexportes vers l'Union des 
Republiques socialistes sovietiques ni vers les 
pays satellites. Mais cette fa~on d'agir n'est 
pas la regie generale, dit-on dans ces milieux. 

<< On avait deja declare auparavant, de 
source autorisee, que si un pays beneficiant de 
l'aide du Plan Marshall expediait vers l'Union 
des Republiques socialistes sovietiques ou ses 
satellites des produits que les Etats-Unis 
d'Amerique ne leur livraient pas, ce fait justi
fierait l'ouverture de discussions entre l'Ad
ministrateur du Plan et le pays interesse. » 

Ces citations, tirees d'une source qu'on ne 
peut guere qualifier d' « anonyme », expliquent 
pourquoi la delegation de la Pologne a men
tionne ce probleme dans la premiere partie de 
son discours. 

En presentant son projet de resolution, le 
chef de la delegation polonaise a egalement 
parle du probleme des echanges commerciaux 
entre !'Europe occidentale et orientale. 11 est 
heureux de noter que toutes les delegations 
faisant partie de la Commission sont entiere
ment d'accord sur la necessite de developper 
le commerce entre l'est et l'ouest. 11 est 
heureux de constater egalement, avec le repre
sentant des Pays-Bas, que, en ce qui concerne 
ce pays, le commerce a deja atteint son niveau 
d'avant guerre, et il partage entierement 
l'avis du representant du Royaume-Uni qui 
estime que la reconstruction de !'Europe occi
dentale est essentiellement liee au commerce 
entre l'est et l'ouest. 

Plusieurs delegations ont mentionne Ia 
decision recente prise par un comite special 
de la Commission economique pour !'Europe 
de creer un comite special du developpement 
industriel et du commerce ; et ces delegatioM 
out admis en meme temps que les pays de 

228 



fied with that achievement, as they had also 
hoped for the setting up of a committee on 
economic development. 

Poland believed firmly that the real recovery 
and expansion of East-West trade was possible 
only if 1>teps were taken at the same time to 
increase the output of the various branches 
of Eastern European production, both agricul
tural and industrial, so as to enable Eastern 
European countries to produce really 
appreciable exportable surpluses of different 
commodities needed by Western Europe. 

The existing network of bilateral agreements, 
concluded outside the United Nations and 
the Economic Commission for Europe, covered 
almost entirely all the trade possibilities which 
might have been realized on the preseri.t level 
of Eastern European production. The ECE 
secretariat's report stated that the relatively 
low level of East-West trade in 1947 had been 
due to the low level of Eastern European 
production, and stressed that, if the trade 
were brought up to its pre-war level, the dollar 
deficit of Western Europe would be reduced 
by 2,000 million dollars. 

Poland believed that any action on the 
part of the ECE to foster trade between 
Eastern and Western Europe must be doomed 
to failure if not accompanied by a com
prehensive plan for expanding those branches 
of Eastern European production which might 
supply goods for that increased trade. That 
was why Poland felt disappointed with the 
results achieved by the ad hoc Committee 
on Industrial Development and Trade of the 
ECE. 

When introducing its draft resolution on 
political discrimination in the field of foreign 
trade, the Polish delegation had raised the 
whole problem of the so-called discrimination 
itself only because the word "discrimination" 
had taken on a meaning corresponding only 
to what the Polish regarded as its formalistic 
interpretation. The draft resolution did not 
imply that false though widely known 
interpretation. 

The United States representative had 
spoken of the historical development of the 
United States idea of discrimination in foreign 
trade. He felt that the United States 
Government, together with many other 
Governments of the so-called big trading 
countries, had failed to realize the fundamental 
change which had taken place in international 
economic relations after the First World "\'Var. 
Owing to the disruption of the so-called world 
economic equilibrium existing before 1914 and 
based upon a certain long-established economic 
relationship between the different continents 
and the different leading national economies, 
the forms of international trade existing in 
the capitalistic world before that war had 
obviously become obsolete. 

l'Europe orientale ne s'estiment pas satis
faits, etant donne qu'ils ont egalement espere 
voir se constituer un comite pour le develop
pement economique. 

La Pologne croit sincerement que le releve
ment et le developpement reel du commerce 
est-ouest n'est possible que si des mesures 
sont prises en meme temps pour augmenter 
le rendement des diverses branches de la pro
duction de l'Europe orientale - a la fois 
agricole et industrielle - afin de permettre 
aux pays de !'Europe orientale de produire 
une quantite excedentaire vraiment appre
ciable pour permettre certaines exportations 
dont !'Europe occidentale a besoin. 

Le reseau actuel des accords bilateraux -
conclus en dehors de !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies et de la Commission econo
mique pour !'Europe- absorbe presque toutes 
les possibilites commerciales qui pourraient 
etre realisees etant donne le niveau actuel de 
la production de l'Europe orientale. Le rap
port du Secretariat de la Commission econo
mique pour l'Europe (CEE) declare que le 
niveau relativement bas du commerce est
ouest en 1947 est du au faible niveau de la 
production de !'Europe orientale et souligne 
que, si le commerce etait ramene a son niveau 
d'avant guerre, le deficit de !'Europe occi
dentale en dollars se trouverait diminue de 
2 milliards. 

La Pologne pense que toutes les mesures 
prises par la CEE pour developper le commerce 
entre !'Europe orientale et !'Europe occiden
tale sont vouees a l'echec si elles ne s'accompa
gnent pas d'un plan detaille et complet de 
developpement des branches de la production 
de !'Europe orientale qui pourront fournir des 
produits pour des echanges accrus. C'est pour
quoi la Pologne est de<;ue devant les resultats 
obtenus par le Comite special du developpe
ment industriel et du commerce de la CEE. 

En presentant son projet de resolution sur les 
mesures de discrimination politique en matiere 
de commerce exterieur, la delegation de la 
Pologne a souleve le. probleme des mesures 
dites discriminatoires uniquement parce que 
le mot (( discrimination » a pris un sens qui 
correspond a ce que la delegation polonaise 
considere comme une interpretation formaliste. 
Le projet de resolution n'envisage pas cette 
interpretation fausse bi~n que tres repandue. 

Le representant des Etats-Unis d'Amerique 
a parle du developpement historique de 
!'idee americaine de discrimination en matiere 
de commerce ext,erieur. II estime que le Gou
vernement des Etats-Unis d'Amerique, ainsi 
que de nombreux autres Gouvernements des 
soi-disant grands pays commer<;ants ne se sont 
pas rendu compte du changement fonda
mental qui a eu lieu dans les relations econo
miques inte~nationales apres la premiere guerre 
mondiale. Etant donne la rupture de l'equi
libre economique mondial qui existait avant 
1914 et qui etait fonde sur certaines relations 
economiques etablies depuis longtemps entreles 
continents et entre les grandes economies natio
nales, les formes de commerce international qui 
existaient dans le monde capitaliste avant cette 
guerre devinrent manifestement surannees. 

229 



The United States, however, had maintained 
its orthodox views on multilateralism without 
realizing that the rapid rise of its economy 
called· for a very fundamental re-orientation of 
its economic and commercial policy. The 
Reciprocal Tr.ade Agreement Act of 1934 had 
not constituted an adequate measure to meet 
the new situation. Notwithstanding its views 
on the subject, Poland had been willing to 
negotiate a bilateral treaty with the United 
States and had in fact concluded a preliminary 
protocol in May 1939. The outbreak of 
hostilities alone had. grevented the c.on.clusion 
of that treaty. 

The United States representative had rightly 
pointed out that there were no clear-cut 
provisions about so-called trade discrimination 
in the United· Nations Charter. He had added 
that that p.articular. subject had been 
thoroughly examined at the Havana 
Conference, called by the Economic and Social 
Council, and finally included in the so-called 
Charter on Trade and Employment. He had 
stated that the Havana charter was "founded 
on the prineiple of non-discrimination." 
Every one knew, however, that, after a very 
long fight waged by several leading trading 
countries against the initial United States 
proposals, the Charter had accepted, in Ar
ticle 23, commercial policies whihe the United 
States thesis described as "discrimination". 

The gist of the final result was that most 
Governments throughout the world had 
adopted commercial policies which the United 
States regarded as discriminatory, that they 
had agreed under United States pressure 
"theoretically" to adopt the principle of so
called non-discrimination, but that they were 
allowed to apply that principle in practice 
which meant that they would continue to 
have the same commercial policies as they had 
had before the Havana Conference. In other 
words, if the Polish Government, together 
with other like-minded Governments, applied 
a policy which the United States considered to 
be discriminatory, that policy would be fully 
covered bytheprovisions of the Havana charter. 

It could therefore be asked why Poland 
rejected the Havana charter in its present 
form. He was not going to repeat the 
arguments he had already put forward in the 
Economic and Social Council, but would simply 
add that Poland was against the hypocrisy of 
all the relevant articles in that document. 
A specific provision of article 23 conveyed the 
impression that, while the charter allowed 
all Governments to conduct their commercial 
policies in the same way as at present, that 
state of affairs would probably end somewhere 
around 1950 or 1952. Every one knew that 
such an assumption was entirely unfounded, 
yet there seemed to exist a tacit understanding 
that that should not be made public. That 
strange conspiracy was due to the entirely 
misleading creed that formal equality of 
treatment in international economic relations 

Les Etats-Unis d'Amerique, cependant, 
avaient gar.de leurs notions orthodoxes sur le 
commerce multilateral sans se rendre compte 
que la croissance rapide de l'economie ameri
caine exigeait une reorientation fondamentale 
de la politique economique et commerciale des 
Etats.-Unis. La loi de 1934 sur les accords 
commerciaux reciproques ne constituait pas 
une mesure suffisante pour faire face a. cette 
nouvelle situation. Malgre son opinion arretee 
sur cette question, la Pologne etait disposee a 
negocier un traite bilateral avec les Etats
Unis d'Amerique et, en fait, avait conclu un 
protocole preliminaire en mai 1939. Seule 
l'ouverture des hostilites empecha la conclu
sion de ce traite. 

Le representant des Etats-Unis· d'Amerique 
ajustementfait remarquer qu'irn'ya pas rums 
la Charte des Nations Unies. de dispositions 
precises concernant la diserimination commer
ciale. 11 a ajoute que ce point particulier avait 
ete examine a fond a. la Conference sur le 
commerce et l'emploi de La Havane, 
convoquee par le Conseil economique et social 
et qu'il avait ete finalement inclus dans Ia 
charte instituant une organisation internatio
nale du commerce. 11 a declare que la charte 
de La Havane etait « fondee sur le principe de 
Ia non-discrimination n. Chacun sait cependant 
qu'apres une tres longue lutte engagee par plu
sieurs grands pays coml?erc;ants contre les pro
positions initiales des Etats-Unis d'Amerique 
on a precise, dans !'article 23 de Ia charte, des 
pratiques commerciales que la these ameri
caine qualifie de << discriminatoires >>. 

Bref, la plupart des Gouvernements ayant 
adopte une politique commerciale que les 
Etats-Unis d'Amerique considerent comme 
discriminatoire, ces Gouvernements conve
naient, sous la pression des Etats-Unis d'Ame
rique, d'adopter « en theorie n le principe de 
la non~discrimination, mais on leur permettait, 
dans la pratique, de continuer a suivre la 
politique commerciale qui etait la leur avant 
la Conference de La Havane. En d'autres 
termes, si. le Gouvernement polonais~ ainsi 
que d.'autres Gouvernements qui partagent 
ses idees, applique une politique que la these 
des Etats-Unis d'Amerique qualifie de discri
minatoire, cette politique sera pleinement visee 
par les dispositions de la charte de La Havane. 

On peut se demander alors pourquoi la 
Pologne rejette la charte de La Havane sous 
sa forme actuelle. II n'est pas dans les inten
tions du representant de la Pologne de repeter 
les arguments qu'il a deja developpes devant 
le Conseil economique et social, mais il desire 
simplement ajouter que la Pologne s'eleve 
contre l'hypocrisie des articles de ce document. 
Une disposition de !'article 23 donne a enten
dre que, si la charte permet a tous les Gou
vernements de conserver leur politiq ue commer
ciale actuelle, cette situation prendra proba
blement fin vers 1950 ou 1952. Chacun sait 
que cette hypothese est entierement denuee de 
fondement et, cependant, il semble qu'un 
accord tacite existe, suivant lequel le fait ne 
doit pas etre rendu public. Cette etrange 
conspiration est due a la croyance totale
ment erronee que le principe de l'egalite de 

230 



wa.s something basically "good", and that any 
attempt to reach real equality in those relations 
·con&tituted something shameful. 

Thus, in the light of existing facts, there w.as 
no difference between the Polish system of 
commercial policy and the systems existing 
in other countries, no matter what the different 
Governments thought about the development 
<>f international trade policies. The Polish 
delegation did not know what the future 
would bring in that field, and, when it stressed 
the importance of bilateral agreements, it 
was. by no means certain whether they repre
sented a new system of commercial policy 
~ich, would stay; for several. decades or 
whether they were merely a. transition to 
some other future system. 

He doubted very mu.ch whether m.ul.tilater
alism. would ever reappear in its previous form 
and, consequently, whether the obsolete 
formalistic interpretation of discrimination 
would be of any practical use in the future. 
Intervention in internal economic policies of 
different countries had developed to such an 
extent that nobody would· dare to think 
that the system of bilateral trade agreements 
meant only a provisional abandonment of the 
·entirely free economic system. Yet, when 
international economic relations were discussed 
there seemed to exist a vague feeling that, at 
some unspecified date in the future, the world 
would revert to the previous free trading 
system with all the consequences it entailed 
for the under-developed and war-damaged 
countries. 

Poland's commercial policy was the same as 
that employed by other countries, and the 
different interpretation given to the word 
«discrimination" reflected only a different 
opinion regarding developments in a more 
remote future. The Polish delegation, felt it 
had to explain its view on that subject. Its 
resolution, however, referred only to a specific 
case of discrimination, i.e. the case ·w:here 
diffeFential treatment in trade was applied 
by one Member of the United Nations against 
another, not for economic but merely for 
political reasons. 

One example of such discrimination was 
provided by the United States export licensing 
system. It was not a differential treatment 
based on economic considerations, nor could 
its application in practice have any bearing 
on the security of the United States. 

Any country was naturally entitled to make 
any regulations it wished concerning its 
foreign trade, and the United States was no 
exception to that. He wished to point out, 
however, that one of the normal provisions 
contained in all, or at least in all European 
commercial treaties during the,inter-warperiod, 
was that regulations in foreign trade which 
one of the contracting parties applied, or 
might apply in the future, were acceptable 
to the other party provided they applied to 
all other countries.. That meant that, if the 

traitement en matiere de relations ec~o
miques internationales est «bon» en lui-meme, 
mais que toute tentative faite pour l'eali.ser 
cette egalite est un acte reprehensible. 

Ainsi, a la lumiere des faits, il n'existe 
aucune difference entre la politique commer
ciale polonaise et celle qui existe dan$ les 
autres pays, quoi que puissent penser l'es 
divers Gouvern,ements de !'evolution d'e la 
politiq:u;e internationale des echanges, La dele
gation polonaise ign~n:e ce q.ue l'avenir appor
tera dans ce doma,i.ne, et, si elle souligne 
!'importance des accords bilateraux, elle igoo.re 
si cette nouvelle politique d'echanges du.J!eJ:a 
plusieurs diz;aines d'annees ou si elle ne sera 
qu'une· sim;ple transition vers un systeme 
different. 

L'orateur doute fort qu,e le. multilat~
lisme reapparaisse jamais sous son. ancienne 
forme et que l'on pu.isse, en consequeljlce, dans 
l'avenir, conserver au terme de discrimination 
son s~ns desuet et formaliste. L'intervention 
dans la politique commerciale interieu.lie des 
differents pays a pris une telle extension que 
persmme ne peut pretendre que le systeme des 
accords bilateraux n'est qu'un abandon pFo'Vi
soire du systeme de libre-echange. Et,. cepen
dant, lorsqu'on a discute des relations econo
miques internationales, il semble que l'on ait 
eprouve le sentiment qu'a une certaine date 
dans l'avenir le monde revieo.dra a l'ancien 
systeme du libre-echange, avec toutes les 
consequences que cela comportera. pour les 
pays insuffisamment developpes ou r3[vages 
par la guerre. 

La politique commerciale de la Pologne est 
la meme que celle des. autres pays, et !'interpre
tation differente donnee au mot <t dis.c:trimina-

• tion » ne refl.ete qu'une divergence di'opinion 
! quant a !'evolution de la situation. dans un 
: avenir plus lointain. La delegation polonaise 
! pense qu'elle devait expliquer son point de 
1 

vue sur cette question. La resolution qu'elle 
I presente ne s'applique toutefois qu'a un cas 
i determine de discrimination : le seul cas ou un 
: traitement differentiel en matiere commer
' ciale est applique par un Membre des Nations 
! Unies a nn autre Membre, non pas pour 
: des raisons economiques, mais uniquement 
! pour des raisoThS politiq:ues. 
: Un exemple de cette discriminatioB~ est 
! fourni par le regime des licences d'exportation 
· aux Etats-Unis. Il ne s'agit pas d'un traite

ment differentiel base sur des considerations 
economiques, et son applicatiou dans la pra
tique ne peut af(ecter en rien la securite des 
Etats-Unis. 

Tout les pays ont naturellement le droit de 
reglementer comme ils l'entenden.t leur com
merce exterieur, et les Etats-Uuis ne font pas 
exception a cette r€gle. Le representant de la 
Pologne desire toutefois souligner qu'une des 
dispositions habituelles de tous les traites de 
commerce, ou tout au moins de to us les traites. 
de commerce europeens de la periode de 
l'entre-deux-guerres, p.revoit que les reglemen
tations qu'une des parties contractantes 
applique ou peut appliquer a son commerce 
exterieur sont egalement applicables a l'autre 

231 



United States decided to enforce an export 
licensing system, that system should apply to 
the whole world and not only to Europe. 

Explaining the reasons for the introduction 
of the licensing system in the United States, 
the United States representative had referred 
to a ''restricted list of specific products in 
short supply." Although Poland was not 
satisfied with the way that system worked, 
particularly as regards the International 
Emergency Food Council, that was not what 
it had in mind when submitting its draft 
resolution on the usc of "discrimination in 
trade or credit policy which is calculated to 
apply sanctions or to influence the domestic 
or foreign policy of any other country." What 
it had had in mind was the "reinforcement", 
as the United States representative had mildly 
qualified it, of that export control by the 
introduction of export licences for nearly 
all United States shipments to Europe. He 
could not criticize the fact that the system 
had been introduced, but he did criticize 
very strongly the way in which it was applied 
in practice. 

The United States representative had said 
that the aim of the "reinforcement" system 
was "to ensure that the requirements of the 
countries participating in the ERP are met, so 
far as possible, in accordance with... the 
Foreign Assistance Act of 1948", and "to 
supplement the long-standing control of export 
of arms, ammunition and implements of war 
by subjecting to close scrutiny exports to 
Eastern Europe of other items which have 
military significance". 

Lack of dollars, which the Import Export 
Bank credit of 40 million dollars granted to 
Poland in spring 1946 could remedy but very 
little, had restricted normal Polish imports 
from the United States after the war. Actual 
Polish imports from the United States in 1947 
amounted to barely 30 million dollars, a sum 
which was entirely out of proportion both 
to the total of United States exports which 
amounted at that time to between 17,000 
million dollars and 18,000 million dollars, and 
to that part of the exports which was destined 
for Western Europe. The so-called European 
Recovery Programme pr<wided for the 
shipment of about 5,000 million dollars worth 
of goods during 12 or 15 months. The normal 
rate of Polish imports during the same period 
would be something around one-fifth of one 
percent of all United States exports. The 
value of all the items held up by the United 
States administration and destined for Poland 
did not exceed 10 million dollars. The refusal 
to grant export licences in that case could not 
be explained by scarcity. 

partie, sous reserve qu'elles s'appliquent aussi 
a tous les autres pays. C'est-a-dire que, si les 
Etats-Unis decident d'introduire un regime de 
licences d'exportation, ce regime doit s'appli
quer au monde entier et non pas seulement a 
!'Europe. 

Expliquant les raisons qui ont incite les 
Etats-Unis a adop!er le regime des licences, le 
representant des Etats-Unis a fait allusion a 
une << liste limitative de certains produits 
rares ». La Pologne n'est nullement satisfaite 
de la fa<;on dont ce regime a fonctionne en cc 
qui concerne particulierement le Conseil inter
national de la crise alimentaire, mais ce n'est 
pas a cela qu'elle pensait lorsqu'elle a soumis 
son projet de resolution sur l'emploi de 
mesures discriminatoires dans le domaine 
economique ou des credits, mesures destinees 
a appliquer des sanctions ou a influencer la 
politique interieure ou exterieure d'autres 
pays. Ce qu'elle avait a !'esprit, c'etait le 
« renforcement » - suivant la pale definition 
employee par le representant des Etats-Unis -
du controle des exportations, par l'etablisse
ment de licences d'exportation pour presque 
toutes les expeditions faites par les Etats
Unis al'Europe. Le representant de la Pologne 
ne peut soulever d'objections sur le fait meme 
de l'etablissement de ce regime, mais il s'eleve 
de toutes ses forces contre la fa<;on dont il a 
ete applique dans la pratique. 

Le representant des Etats-Unis a declare 
que le but du regime de (( renforcement du 
controle )) etait de (( s'assurer que les besoins 
des pays participants au Plan de redressement 
europeen sont satisfaits dans la mesure du 
possible, en accord avec ... la Loi de 1948 sur 
I' aide a l'etranger )) et ((de completer le controle 
tres ancien des exportations d'armes, de muni
tions et d'engins de guerre, en examinant tres 
attentivement les expeditions a destination 
de l'Europe orientale d'autres produits pre
sentant un interet du point de vue militaire ''· 

Le manque de dollars, auquel le credit de 
40 millions de dollars consenti a la Pologne par 
l'Import-Export Bank au printemps 1946 n'a 
pu remedier que dans une faible mesure, a 
reduit, apres la guerre, le chiffre normal des 
i!llportations polonaises en provenance des. 
Etats-Unis. Le chiffre reel des importations 
polonaises en provenance des Etats-Unis s'est 
eleve en 1947 a 30 millions de dollars a peine, 
somme qui est absolument hors de proportion 
a la fois avec le chiffre total des exportations 
des Etats-Unis, qui s'eleve actuellement a 17 
ou 18 milliards de dollars, et avec la tranche 
des exportations americaines destinee a !'Eu
rope occidentale. Le plan dit de relevement 
europeen prevoit !'expedition d'environ 5 mil
liards de dollars de marchandises pendant 
douze ou quinze mois. Le chiffre normal des 
importations polonaises pendant Ia meme 
periode se chiffrera a environ un cinquieme 
<!e I pour 100 du total des exportations des 
Etats-Unis. La valeur de tous les articles 
retenus par !'administration des Etats-Unis 
et destines a la Pologne n'excede pas 10 mil
lions de dollars. Le refus d'accorder des 
licences d'exportation ne peut, dans ce cas 
particulier, se justifier par la penurie. 

232 



One of the "biggest" items held up by 
the United States administration was copper. 
Poland had asked for 1,500 tons of copper 
representing about 770,000 dollars for which 
it had already paid about 370,000 dollars. 
That amount had not been allowed for export, 
although total United States exports of copper 
and manufactures amounted in 1947 to about 
200,000 tons representing 108 million dollars. 
Could any one objectively state that the 
export of such a quantity of copper could 
endanger ERP in Western Europe or 
strengthen the military potential of Poland? 

Total exports of agricultural machinery 
from the United States amounted in 1947 
to about 320 million dollars; yet Poland had 
been refused 16,000 dollars worth of spare 
parts and tyres for tractors. Poland 
could not obtain from the United States 
300 tons of linters, 80 kilogrammes of nickel 
rod, 6,000 dollars worth of radio valves, 
86,000 dollars worth of sewing-machines, 
48,000 dollars worth (of which 29,000 dollars 
had already been paid) of machine tools etc. 
Could the export of such items really endanger 
ERP or strengthen Poland's military 
potential? Every one would agreed that the 
refusal to export two static balances valued 
at 15,000 dollars or electrical instruments 
valued at 6,000 dollars could not be the 
expression of any economic policy but had to 
be regarded as sanctions. 

The United States representative himself 
had admitted that the licensing system was 
an economic measure dictated by purely 
political considerations when he had said that 
''the United States can scarcely be expected 
to supply out of its limited export possibilities 
the materials for building up the military 
potential of countries which have openly and 
repeatedly proclaimed their hostility towards 
the programmes and purposes of the United 
States. . . and have in fact, through their 
aggressive actions as well as words, forced the 
free nations of the world to adopt appropriate 
measures in the interest of their own security." 

The important part of the United States 
representative's statement was that not only 
acts but "proclaimed hostility towards the 
programmes and purposes of the United 
States" and "aggressive words" could be 
used as a reason for withholding exports to 
any given country. He had said that, if 
any country was dissatisfied with what he had 
described as "the security aspects" of the 
United States programme and policy, it could 
find "the reasons in the policies and actions" 
of its own government. That was precisely 
what the Polish draft resolution described 
as economic discrimination based exclusively 
on political reasons. 

Turning to the Polish draft resolution itself, 
he said that he was prepared to accept amend
ments to the present wording of the draft. 

Le cuivre est parmi les articles les plus 
importants retenus par !'administration des 
Etats-Unis. La Pologne a demande 1.500 
tonnes de cuivre representant une valeur 
d'environ 770.000 dollars, sur lesquels 370.000 
dollars ont deja ete verses. L'exportation de ce 
tonnage n' a pas ete autorisee, quoique le total 
des exportations de cuivre et des produits 
manufactures des Etats·Unis se soit eleve en 
1947 a environ 200.000 tonnes, representant 
108 millions de dollars. Peut-on objectivement 
pretendre que !'exportation de la quantite de 
cuivre en question peut compromettre le Plan 
de redressement europeen en Europe occiden
tale ou renforcer le potentiel militaire de la 
Pologne? 

Le total des exportations des Etats-Unis en 
machines agricoles s'est eleve en 1947 a environ 
320 millions de dollars, et cependant on a refuse 
a la Pologne !'exportation de 16.000 dollars 
de pieces detachees et de pneus pour tracteurs. 
La Pologne n'a pu obtenir des Etats-Unis 
300 tonnes de bourres de coton, 80 kilo
grammes de barres de nickel, 6.000 dollars 
de lam pes de radio, 86.000 dollars de machines 
a coudre, 48.000 dollars (sur lesquels 29.000 
dollars ont deja ete verses) de machines
outils, etc. L'exportation de ces articles peut
elle vraiment compromettre le Plan de redres
sement europeen ou renforcer le potentiel 
militaire de la Pologne ? Tout le monde 
conviendra que le refus d'autoriser !'exporta
tion de deux balances electriques d'une valeur 
de 15.000 dollars ou d'appareillage electrique 
d'une valeur de 6.000 dollars ne peut pas etre 
determine par des raisons de politique econo
mique, mais doit etre considere comme une 
sanction. 

Le representant des Etats-Unis lui-meme a 
admis que le regime des licences constituait 
une mesure economique dictee par des consi
derations purement politiques lorsqu'il a 
declare que << les Etats-Unis ne peuvent pre
lever, sur leurs possibilites d'exportation 
limitees, les produits qui renforceraient le 
potentiel militaire de pays qui se sont maintes 
fois proclames ouvertement hostiles aux pro
grammes des Etats-Unis ... et qui, par leur 
attitude et leurs propos agressifs, ont oblige 
les nations libres a prendre les mesures qui 
s'imposent pour la sauvegarde de leur propre 
securite ». 

L'essentiel de la declaration du represen
tant des Etats-Unis, c'est que non seulement 
les actions, mais encore « l'hostilite ouverte 
contre les programmes et les buts des Etats
Unis », ainsi que« les propos agressifs » peuvent 
constituer des raisons de suspendre les expor
tations vers n'importe quel pays. Il a declare 
que, si un pays etait mecontent des ((buts de 
securite )) de la politique et du programme des 
Etats-Unis, il en trouverait la raison dans 
!'attitude et la politique poursuivie par son 
propre Gouvernement. C'est la precisemcnt ce 
que le projet de resolution polonais qualifie 
de discrimination economique fondee exclu
sivement sur des raisons politiques. 

Passant au projet de resolution polonais, 
l'orateur declare qu'il est pret a accepter des 
amendements au texte actuel du projet. En 

233 



In reply to the· United Kingdom and French 
:r.epresentatiws. who· had queried the use of 
the word '"sanctions" he said that he agreed 
to the exceptions listed in Article 41 of the 
Charter; the Polish delegation. had never 
nmaa"lt to disregard. any Article of the Charter 
and was: prepared to accept any amendn:rent 
based· on Article 41. 

The Polish delegation agreed that the draft 
resolution should mention possible exceptions 
·on. gt!Ounds of military security but felt that. 
an.y amendment to that effect should be very 
-carefully worded so as t:o p.reclude th.e 
possibiiity (j)f such abuse as he had mentioned 
befone. Ex:c:teptions for security reasons, were 
part of practically all commercial' treaties 
befone the war, and it should not be difficult, 
therefore,. to agree on an appropriate amend.
rnent, based on any of those texts. 

He then dealt with the remarks made by 
various: representatives on the relationship 
between the draft resolution and the Hawana 
-charter. The United Kingdom rep11esentative 
had suggested that the draft should be 
referred to the :future International Trade 
Organization. Other representatives had 
refurred to the Havana charter as an 
international document of full legal force 
and had mentioned the definition of 
discrimination adopted by that charter, 
suggesting that the concept of discrimination 
used in the Polish draft was inconsistent 
w:ith the principles agreed upon in Havana. 

The Committee was, therefore, faced with 
the two following points: firstly, was the 
Havana charter already legally in force or, 
in other words, could the Polish draft 
resolution be challenged on the grou:mds that 
it w.BIS ineonsisten.t with another valid inter
national agreement;. and, secondly, were. the 
discriminatory pr~Wtices applied, for purely 
political reasons,. by some countries in their 
trade_ relation& with other countries covered 
in. a.tru)'l way by the provisions of that charter? 

lt should oe borne in mind t:hat the Havana 
charter had not been signed but only made an 
authentic document. The representatives 
who had signed the Final Act undertook only 
to submit the charter to th{'ir Governments 
without even any undertaking as to whether 
they would recommend its adoption. The 
signature of the Final Act, therefore, could 
not. he considered as a recognition of the 
principles and provisions em bodied in the 
charter. &:>me might consider themselves 
bound by the provisions contained in the so
called General Agreement on Tariffs and 
Trade. 

That agreement wa~ not, however, defia.ite 
in its character and was being applied only 
provisionally by those who had signed it. 
The Havana charter contained specific 
provisions regarding its entry into force, and, 
as long as the appropriate conditions had not 
been fulfilled, it was impossible to regard it as 
an international agreement legally in force. 
Consequently, the United Kingdom suggestion 
that the whole subjeP.t of the Polish draft 

reponse aux representants du Royaume-Uni et 
de Ia France qui se sont etonnes qu'il ai.t 
employe le mot «sanctions n, il declare qu'il 
reconnait les exceptions enumerees a !'Ar
ticle 41 de la Charte ; Ia delegation polonaise 
n'a jamais eu !'intention de meconnal:trc 
aucun article de cette Cha.rte et est prete a 
accepter tout amendement base sur l' Article 41. 

La delegation polonaise convient que le 
projet de resolution doit prevoir certaines 
exceptions eventuelles pour des motifs de 
securite militaire, mais elle estime que· tout 
amendement propose a cet effet doit €tr.e redige 
soigneusement, afin d'ecarter la possibilite 
d'abus comme ceux qu'il a indiques. Presque 
tous les traites commerciaux, avant laguerre, 

· prevoyaient des exceptions pour· des raisons 
de securite et il ne doit pas etre difficile, par 
consequent, de· s'accorder sur un amende
ment adequat, base sur l'un de ces textes. 

Le representant polonais passe ensuite aux 
observations faites par divers repr-esentants 
sur la relation qui existe entre le projet de 
resolution et la charte de La Havane. Le 
representant du Royaume-Uni a propose que 
le projet soit renvoye a la future organisation 
internationale du commerce. D'autres repre
sentants, considerant la charte de La Havane 
comme un document international ayant 
pleine force ltfgale, ont cite la definition de Ia 
discrimination adoptee par cette charte et 
prcHendu que la notion de discrimination 
definie dans le projet polonais etait incompa
tible avec les principes sur lesquels !'accord 
a ete realise a La Havane. 

La Commission se trouve done en face des 
deux questions suivantes : La charte de La 
Havane a-t-elle deja force legale ou, en d'autres 
termes, le projet de resolution polonais peut-il 
etre combattu sous le pretexte qu'il est incom
patible avec un autre accord international en 
vigueur? D'autre part: Les mesures discrimina
toires appliquees pour des raisons purement po~ 
litiques par certains pays dans leurs relations 
commerciales avec d'autres pays sont-elles pre
vues dans les dispositions de cette charte ? 

On ne doit pas perdre de vue que la charte 
de La Havane n'a pas ete signee, mais qu'on lui 
a seulement donne le caractere d'un document 
authentique. Les representants qui ont signe 
l'acte final se sont seulement engages a 
soumettre le texte de Ia charte a leur Gouverne
ment, sans prendre meme !'engagement de 
recommander son adoption. La signature de 
l'acte final ne peut done etre considerce comme 
une reconnaissance des principes et des dispo
sitions contenus dans la charte. Certains peu
vent se considerer comme lies par Ies disposi
tions de !'accord dit Accord general sur les 
tarifs douaniers et le commerce. 

Cet accord n'a toutefois pas un earactere 
definitif et n'est applique que provisoirement 
par ceux qui l'ont signe. La charte de La 
Havane contient des dispositions particulieres 
concernant son entree en vigueur, et, tant que 
les conditions adequates n'auront pas ete rem
plies, il est impossible de la considerer comme 
un accord international ayant force legale. 
En consequence, Ia proposition du Royaume
Uni tendant a cc que !'ensemble de la question 

234 



Tesolution should be referred to the ITO 
·Could not. be r.e.tained. 

Even if the Havana.. charter had b.ecome a 
legal international agreement. and ev.en if it 
.contained provisions capable of covering any 
specific case or justifying any concrete. 
.action, it still would not justify economic. 
discrimination.. applied for political reasons. 
Any attempt. at international economic co
-operation, on the scale envisaged by the ITO, 
-could be made only on the assumption that 
peaceful and friendly relations would prevail 
:among the countries of the world. 

~hose who had drafted the charter could. 
not have assumed that international economic 
relations might be endangered by measures of 
political discrimination in the economic field. 
on the part of some countries. Article 86, 
paragraph 3, of the Ha.vana: charter stated 
that "the organization should not attempt 
to take action which would involve passing 
judgment in any way on essentially political 
matters." Consequently, if the ITO were 
formally in existence it could not deal with 
the question raised by the Polish delegation 
unless it violated its own constitution. It 
would, on the contrary, be obliged to refer the 
matter to the United Nations, as the question 
dearly involved political considerations falling 
exclusively within the scope of United Nations 
activities. 

The Havana charter did allow import and 
export restrictions, preferential treatment, 
exchange controls and other measures of 
economic regimentation. However, it stated 
the circumstances in which those measures 
could be applied. For instance, it allowed 
Member States to impose restrictions or apply 
regulations "essential to the acquisition or 
distribution of products in general or local 
shoPt supply". 

However, article 45, sub-paragraph (b) ( i), 
explicitly stated that measures taken in such 
a case should be consistent "with the principle 
that all Members are entitled to an equitable 
share of the international supply of such 
products." 

The United States representative might of 
course reply that his Government could not 
be bound by an agreement which had not 
yet been ratified by Congress, but, in such a 
case, it would be better to drop all references 
to the Havana charter in connexion with 
the Polish draft resolution. Consequently, 
any amendment to the Polish draft resolution 
to the effect that reference should be made 
to the definition of discrimination as adopted 
in the Havana charter should be ruled out as 
irrelevant to the problem in question, which 
was certainly not covered by any provision 
of the charter. 

The Belgian representative had said that it 
was a. bad method to repeat things which 
were already contained in the charter and that 
such repetition was only jlllstified when there 

faisant l'objet du proj,et de resolution de. la 
Pologne soit tJ:a.nsmis. a l'OIC ne peut etre· 
reconnu. 

Meme si la. char.te de La. Havane etait deve
: nue· un acco11d international ay.ant f0nce le~lc 
et meme si elle contenait des dispositions. wo.u

; vant s'app>liquer a. tous les cas particuliers ou 
· justifier une action concrete, elle· ne justifie-
rait pas encore !'application de mesures discri

, minatoires dans le domaine econoroique: p0ur 
: des raisons politiques. Une cooperation econo
. mique internationale, a l'echelle envisagee 
• par l'OIC, 11e peut etre tentee que lorsque des 
relations paci•fiques et amicales s.'etabliront 
entre toutes les nations. 

Ceux qui ont redige· la. charte. ne pouvaient 
pas prevoir que les relations eeon0miques 
internationales pourraient etre menacees par 
des mesures discriminatoires a car.actere poli
tique, prises dans le domaine economique par 
certains pays. Le, paragraphe 3 de !'article 86 
de la charte de La Havane stipule que« !'Orga
nisation ne devra pas chercher a agir d'une 
maniere impliquant qu'elle se prononce d'une 
fa<;on quelconque sur des questions d'ordre 
essentiellement politique ». En consequence, si 
l'OIC etait officiellement rattachee a !'Organi
sation des Nations Unies, elle ne pourrait pas 
traiter la question soulevee par la delegation 
polonaise a moins de violer sa propre constitu
tion. Elle serait, au contraire, dans l'obli~
tion de sournettre la question aux Nations 
Unies, car elle comporte clairement des aspects 
politiques qui relevent exclusivement du 
domaine d'activite des Nations Unies. 

La charte de La Havane autorise formelle
ment les restrictions a !'importation et a !'ex
portation, le traitement preferentiel, le controle 
des echanges et d'autres mesures de reglemen
tation economique. Toutefois elle precise les 
conditions dans lesquelles ces mesures peuvent 
etre appliquees. Elle permet par exemple aux 
Etats membres d'imposer des restrictions et 
d'appliquer des reglementations (( essentielles 
pour !'acquisition ou la repartition de produits 
dont il y a penurie generale ou locale »• 

Toutefois le paragraphe, b) aline a i), de l"ar· 
ticle 45 indique explicitement que les mesures 
prises dans ces conditions doivent etre compa
tibles avec le principe de la participation 
equitable de tOlLS les Etats membres a l'appro
visionnement international en ces produits. 

Le representant des Etats-Unis peut natu
rellement repondre que son Gouvernement ne 
peut pas etre lie par un accord qui n'a pas 
encore ete ratifie par le Congres, mais, dans ('e 
cas, il vaut mieux ne plus parler de la charte 
de La Havane a propos du projet de resolution 
polonais. En consequence, tout amendement 
au projet de resolution de la Pologne tendant 
a se reporter a la definition de la discrimination 
telle qu'elle a ete adoptee dans la charte de 
La Havane doit etre ecarte comme ne rele
vant pas du probleme en question, car ce pro
bleme n'est pas traite dans cette charte. 

Le representant de la Belgique a declare 
que reproduire ce qui est deja contenu dans la 
chl::trte est une mauvaise methode et que cette 
repetition ne peut se justifier que lorsqu'il y a 

235 



was violation of the principles in question. 
He could not agree with the first part of that 
statement, because he felt that the provisions 
of the charter in that case were rather vague 
and would need authoritative interpretation. 
He fully agreed with the second part of the 
statement, but he did consider that there 
was a violation of the basic principles 
governing international economic relations, 
and that was the main reason for the Polish 
draft resolution. 

International trade suffered greatly 
because of the unbalanced conditions 
existing throughout the world, both in 
internal economies and in the balances of 
payment of various countries. That had led 
to a multitude of restrictions hampering the 
development of international trade still 
further. Those restrictions, however, had 
been due to economic considerations, and non
economic reasons had never until now inter
fered with trade in peace time. 

Unfortunately, there were signs that inter
national trade might suffer in the future not 
only because of the inevitable consequences 
of two wars fought within one generation but 
also because of completely non-economic 
reasons which could be avoided. The Polish 
delegation felt that, in such circumstances, 
that Committee should at least express an 
opinion on the subject. The Polish delegation 
was prepared to accept suggestions about 
possible amendments to the draft. However, 
it felt that the Committee could not possibly 
refuse to express an opinion on the highly 
important problem of additional disturbances 
arising in the field of international trade for 
purely political reasons. 

The CHAIRMAN pointed out that three 
meetings had been devoted to the Polish 
draft resolution. He would therefore close 
the list of speakers in accordance with rule 
104 of the rules of procedure. The debate 
would be resumed at the following meeting. 

The meeting rose at 6.10 p.m. 

SEVENTY-FOURTH MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
on Wednesday, 10 November 1948, at 3 p.m. 
Chairman: Mr. Hernan SANTA CRuz (Chile). 

27. Continuation of the discussion on the 
question of discrimination in inter
national trade (A/C.2f137, AfC.2/ 
143) 

The CHAIRMAN recalled that the list of 
speakers was closed; nevertheless, as a new 
draft resolution (A/C.2/143) had been sub
mitted by the French delegation, all represen
tatives who wished to speak on it would 
be free to do so. 

violation des principes en question. Le repre
sentant de la Pologne ne peut approuver la 
premiere partie de cette declaration, car il 
estime que, dans le cas present, les dispositions 
de Ia charte sont assez vagues et necessitent 
une interpretation qui fasse loi. II approuve 
pleinement, par contre, la seconde partie de la 
declaration, mais il est convaincu qu'il existe 
une violation des principes esscntiels reglemen
tant les relations economiques internationales, 
et c'est la la raison capitale du projet de reso
lution polonais. 

Le commerce international rencontre de 
grosses difficultes en raison du desequilibre 
mondial des economies nationales et des 
balances de paiement dans divers pays. C'est 
ce qui a conduit a une quantite de restrictions 
qui entravent encore davantage le developpe
ment du commerce international. Toutefois, 
ces restrictions decoulent de considerations 
economiques, et jamais, jusqu'ici, en temps de 
paix, des raisons de caractere non economique 
nc sont intervenues dans le domaine du 
commerce international. 

II est malheureusement probable que le 
commerce international sera entrave dans 
l'avenir, non seulement en raison des conse
quences inevitables des deux guerres qui ont 
eu lieu en l'espace d'une seule generation, mais 
aussi pour des raisons absolument etrangeres 
a l'economie et qu'on aurait pu eviter. La 
delegation polonaise estime qu'en cette cir
constance la Commission doit tout au moins 
exprimer son avis sur la question. La dele
gation polonaise est prete a accueillir toutes 
suggestions concernant des amendements even
tuels au projet dont elle est !'auteur. Toutefois, 
elle est d'avis que la Commission ne peut pas 
refuser d'exprimer une opinion sur la tres 
importante question des difficultes nouvelles 
survenues dans le domaine du commerce 
international pour des raisons purement poli
tiques. 

Le PR1;;.SIDENT souligne que trois seances 
ont ete consacrees au projet de resolution de 
la Pologne et declare close la liste des orateurs, 
conformement a l'article 104 du reglement 
interieur. Le debat reprendra a la prochaine 
seance. 

La seance est levee a 18 h. 10. 

SOIXANTE-QUATORZIEME SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le mercredi 10 novembre 1948, a 15 heures. 

President: 1\f. Hernan SANTA CRuz (Chili). 

27. Suite de la discussion sur la question 
des mesures discriminatoires en ma
tiere de commerce international 
(AfC. 2/137, AfC. 2/143) 

Le PRESIDENT rappelle que la liste des 
orateurs avait ete declaree close ; mais un 
nouveau projet de resolution, celui de la France 
(AfC. 2/143), ayant ete soumis a la Commis
sion, tous les representants qui le desireront 
pourront prendre la parole sur ce projet. 

236 




